O

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd
MREXZBRA A

Stock Code f&fAfL5% : 00229




Corporate Information

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Consolidation Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Years Financial Summary

NEVER

NEIEERSREBEBN

ERRE

B E 5w S o AT

J8 37 12 BUAD =

meERTRER
AR B BT AE

hEMBRHE

—T-cEER

Contents

MREXERAT

B &%

13
16
34
46
48
49
50
51
52
53
55

124



Corporate Information
~NEEH
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 78, is the chairman of
the Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959, he
spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong
Technical College until 1964 when he founded the
Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 48, son of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the board (“Board”)
of directors (“Directors”) as the executive Director on 15
September 1997. He graduated from the University of
Manchester Institute of Science & Technology in 1987
and joined the Company in the same year. He worked as
an engineer, project coordinator, engineering manager
and then general manager for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 48, son of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board as the non-
executive Director on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as
an executive Director on 19 April 2002. He became the
deputy executive chairman on 19 April 2007. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor Degree in Chemical Engineering and a
Master Degree in Economics. He is a U.S. Certified Public
Accountant (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant
(CMA) and is certified in financial management (CFM).
He is an independent non-executive director of Modern
Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0919) and
Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (Stock code:
1229), both companies whose shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 51, was the alternate Director
to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the executive Director and
the chairman of the Company until 1st July 2008 when
he was appointed to the Board as the executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the Company
as a production planning coordinator in 1990. He was
appointed as a production manager in 1993 and general
manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005,
Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in Guangzhou
City, Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AAESBREREERB/E N

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, Jr LLD, DH, aged 81,
brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been the Director
since 1973. Dr. Wong is a consultant of a Hong Kong
firm of solicitors, a Notary Public and a China Appointed
Attesting Officer.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 44, was appointed to the
Board as the non-executive Director on 3 January 2011.
Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of Computer
Science of Nankai University and obtained his bachelor
degree in science in July 1992. He then obtained his
master degree in Economics from Nankai University
School of Economics in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China
North Industries Corporation in August 1995 and took up
the post of deputy general manager of China North
Industries Xiamen Corporation from October 1999 to
November 2000. Mr. Xiong is currently the chairman and
executive director of AKM Industrial Company Limited
(“AKM Industrial”) (Stock code: 8298), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. In November
2000, Mr. Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings)
Ltd., the controlling shareholder and a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of AKM Industrial, as the assistant
general manager and was promoted to the position of
deputy general manager in March 2004. He is the director
of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited, the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001.
Mr. Xiong also serves as the director of AKM Electronics
Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited, and Giant Rise Technology
Ltd.

Ms. Li,Yinghong, aged 51, was appointed to the Board
as the non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is the executive director of AKM
Industrial. In July 1985, she obtained her Bachelor Degree
in Corporate Finance and Accounting from Jiangxi
College of Finance. In May 2003, she obtained a Master
Degree in International Management from Australia
National University. From March 2001 to April 2003, she
was the director of Norinco International Cooperation
Company Limited, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in China. In June 2003, Ms. Li joined
Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd. as the director,
deputy general manager and financial controller.

o
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 71, was appointed
to the Board as the independent non-executive Director
in 1988. He is an entrepreneur with extensive international
experience in garment manufacturing and trading. He is
the founder of the Onwel Group of Companies in 1969
and has been holding the position of executive chairman
since 1982. Also, Mr. Leung is the executive chairman of
Fairtex Muay Fitness and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited
effected from 25 October 2013. He is an independent
non-executive director of Dickson Concepts (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 0113), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony, aged 53, joined in 1994 as
the independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Fan holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the United States of America. He is the chairman
and managing director of AsialLink Capital Limited. He is
also the independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (Stock Code: 1206),
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 0220),
Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu Cayman
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources
Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code:
1296), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882), China Development Bank
International Investment Ltd. (Stock Code: 1062) and LT
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 0112), all listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 77, was appointed to the Board
as the independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004.
Mr. Ng was previously the non-executive director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0440), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He has over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and
leasing finance.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AAESBREREERB/E N

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, aged 40, was appointed to
the Board as the independent non-executive Director on
1 January 2013. He has more than 12 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on
corporate finance. He is currently the managing director
of Guotai Junan Capital Limited and the independent non-
executive director of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 0528), Wuzhou International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1369) and Huiyin Household Appliances
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1280), companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He also has three years of experience in the field
of auditing and accounting. He is a member of the
American Institute of CPA, a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a member of
CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of commerce
degree from University of British Columbia in 1995.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

During the financial year (FY) of 2013, the Group faced
challenges in increased overtime and labour costs due
to a shortage of skilled labour in Guangdong province,
which affected the operation efficiency of the Group. The
Group continued to invest in more semi-automation
production line to reduce labour’s head count; and
initiated an ecological friendly cost saving “Green
Program” to reduce energy consumption and to improve
the Group’s profitability. The Group was however unable
to increase turnover and gross profits due to the
increased labour and overtime costs, coupled with the
depreciation of Japanese Yen and RMB appreciation,
effect of which were uncertain. As a result, for FY2013,
the Group’s consolidated turnover decreased to
HK$1,182,806,329, a decrease of 7.45% compared with
the previous year. The Group’s net profit amounted to
HK$33,004,604 representing an decrease of 29.78%,
compared with the net profit of HK$47,001,236 in FY2012.
Cash generated from operations was HK$115,765,357.
Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2013 was
HK$223,736,803 (with HK$32,299,817 of dividend paid
out during FY2013) compared with HK$149,241,346 as
at the beginning of FY2013. The positive operating cash
flow and substantial cash balances allow the Group to
continue to pay satisfactory dividend and invest more in
the automation processes.

In FY2013, the Group had invested HK$18,616,630 to set
up new semi-automated production lines for a series of
new products, as well as purchase more robotic arms for
injection moulding machines and automatic paint
spraying equipment. At the same time, the management
of the Group re-examined the profitability of each product
and terminated some products with low profit margin.

The Group’s net profit was HK$33,004,604 representing
basic earnings per share of 7.27 HK cents (net profit in
FY2012 was HK$47,001,236, with basic earnings per
share of 10.87 HK cents).

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
AND COMMITMENT

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance good
workplace quality:

(i)

8

Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies
were in full compliance with Mainland China labour
laws and Hong Kong labour laws applicable in
corresponding locations. The working hours,
benefits and welfares of all staff and workers were
also in compliance with local labour laws and
fulfilled working conditions requirement from major
customers and US/European retail stores who
conducted regular audits throughout the year by
3rd parties such as ITS and SGS.

Health and Safety: The Group was in compliance
with Mainland China labour laws and Hong Kong
labour laws applicable in corresponding locations.
Work injuries and key occupational health and
safety Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) were
illustrated in the chart below:

T

RS EERERE

THBHEHR

=

AEBETEUTAMEASBRNE TERENEE :

(i)

(i)

IHERR : AEENL IR TE2FEABERRTE
BEMEEEEMAETBEERS TEAGIREES
AR - FREB TMT AR TIERER - FRBFEHN
B R EMMNESE TR - AKNEDSFEHER
SE=77 (A - ITS - SGS) HHEMETERNEIER
FPHEEBETERH TIERENER

EEELZE  AREZE2NAERRTEEENS
7ol B AEIEF B E i 55 TOAGI REA S TAR -
BERFRZ2NEBEPIERBLHTE

FY 2013 vs

FY 2012

FY 2013 FY 2012 20134 8

20134 20124 2012F 48t

(%)

Number of work injuries TE&E 27 64 -57.81%
Medical Expenses due to TEEERZ (B%) 46,895.87 140,190.55 -66.55%

work injuries (HKD)

The management of the Group was encouraged
to see a safer work place evidenced by fewer work
injuries and lower medical expenses in FY2013.
The Group will continue to procure more
components involving hazardous production
processes from third party suppliers in FY2014 to
further reduce the number of work related injuries.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2013
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(iii)  Development and Training: The Group provided
updated training on the Listing Rules for Directors
and senior executives. The Group also provided
training for middle management, regular
employees and production line workers and
corresponding key Development and Training KPIs
are illustrated in the chart below:

Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE

(i) BRREFI : AEEE/ESMNSRITHABRMR
R EMARRAEN  TATREEE  LERE
T AREERTARESERREE) - BAAS
BEBRRE NS mAEREIIERF2H K

Average Training

Hours per

No. of Employee

Employees HEEE

EEAH 35 Z FI B 2

(hrs)

(/NE)

Middle management HFRERRE 497 15
Regular employees FRET 508 30
Production line workers HFEGTA 2,218 69

(iv) Labour Standard: The Group adopted a
recruitment policy that prevented the hiring of child
labour and forced labour. The Group also
encouraged its workers to form labour unions. A
labour union was formed at our Nansha, Panyu
factory and union representatives held regular
meetings throughout the year to communicate
issues that could improve workers’ morale,
upgrade the living quarters and working
environment, and report workers/management
disputes to the Group’s senior management.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO2 emissions during the manufacturing
processes, minimize excessive use of resources such as
electricity, diesel, water and paper.

(iv) SITER: AEERDHNBERREH LEFET
REHIBT - AEBETZEE TR TEMAMH - &
MEBREEAEERBSNETICKRIL T TeAH -
TeRREBFHERTENEH  BIAHRESE
TTHEER  RMEEBRE - THERRENEE -
TWRAAEEEREEERTIAMEEABRNUD

RBRERR
AEBETLIRBRAFHNGME - RN RIKEEBRST
—EUEBR P BA R TR BEEANE - KRR
SERNBE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

i

(i) CO2 emissions: The chart below illustrated the (i) ZEEIREVBERR - TR L HE R TE R R AR FE L
type of emissions and respective emission data. HIE - AEBBEES T ARE S/ CiRBER
The Group will continue to strive for measures to HIE BE o
lower CO2 emissions.

FY 2013 vs

FY 2012

FY 2013 FY 2012 20134 £

20134 20124 2012 MLk

(%)

Electricity £ 18.83 20.00 -5.86%
(kilotonnes CO2) (F A8 — &1t fx)

oil i 0.40 0.85 -53.51%
(kilotonnes CO2) (F A8 — &1t fx)

Gas R, 0.02 0.04 -51.39%

(kilotonnes CO2) (F 2w =& b Fx)

(ii) Use of Resources: The chart below illustrated the
energy consumption by type throughout FY2013

(i  BRER : BEAREET2013F A/ REE2012
FHBMEREERSBERNBEENERTR

and show comparative data with that of FY2012: T
FY 2013 vs
FY 2012
FY 2013 FY 2012 20135 &
20135 2012%F 2012 18tk
(%)
Electricity £ 23.99 25.48 -5.86%
(GWh) (FIKE/EF)
Qil JH 124.12 266.97 -53.51%
(tonnes) (A HE)
Gas K 10,772.25 21,500.40 -49.90%
(kgs) (F=)
The Group was pleased with the environmental SBEREE2013F 2 EHEERHN NE @ NEBEHEIRER

performance despite a drop in our sales in FY2013.
However, since the operating team has replaced almost
all of the oil & gas consuming forklifts with electrical
forklifts between FY2011-FY2013, the Group does not
expect significant reduction in oil & gas consumption in
FY2014.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
and formulate some operating best practice procedures
by tightening corporate governance policies and setting
guidelines for preventing staff and workers from
committing frauds and engaged in illegal activities.

(i) Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all
suppliers in the Group’s supply chain. The Group
was not aware of any legal cases regarding
corruption of the Group’s management and
employees. The Group also has an independent
internal audit department reporting directly to the
chairman of the Group’s audit committee and has
a whistleblowing system to notify the audit
committee of any potential fraud and malpractices.

(ii) Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has
a quality system that handled customers (and
related products) complaints. Root cause analysis
would be conducted on each major customer
complaint to avoid re-occurance of product
defects.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
in order to create a better community by implementing
programs that built a better society through a wide range
of activities and initiatives:

(i) Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group
has begun a program to use more recycled paper
in operations including printing interim & annual
report booklets; and works with customers to
change product instruction books to recycled
paper materials.

(i) Investment in new talents: The Group continued
to sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group gave guest
lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic University
during FY2013.

Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(iii)

Education involvement: members of the Group
management participated in mentorship programs
organized by Hong Kong JCI (Junior Chamber
International) to support growth of young
professionals. Members of the Group management
also participated in the charity concert organized
by Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra to raise
funds for music education for less privileged
families in Hong Kong.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group remains sound. Its
current ratio was 2.90 as of 31 December 2013, compared
with 2.50 as of 31 December 2012.

During FY2013, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 59 days, compared with 73 days in FY2012. The
inventory turnover in FY2013 was 51 days, compared with
40 days in FY2012.

Bank balances and cash were HK$223,736,803 as of 31
December 2013 (2012: HK$149,241,346), representing
an increase of HK$74,495,457 when compared to the
figures in the previous year, which was mainly due to
faster collection of trade receivables.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2013,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 33% as of 31
December 2013 (2012: 37%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 21 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2013. The proposed final dividend, if approved
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, will be paid on 11 June 2014 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 3 June 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERENWR DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
for the following periods :

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 26
May 2014 (2014 AGM”), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 22
May 2014 to Monday, 26 May 2014, both days
inclusive. In order to be qualified for attending and
voting at the 2014 AGM, all transfer documents
should be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at 1712-1716, 17/
F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21
May 2014.

(2) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed on Friday,
30 May 2014 to Tuesday, 3 June 2014, both days
inclusive. In order to be qualified for the final
dividend, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 29 May 2014.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group expects to face new challenges in FY2014 as
the macro environment continues to be less favourable
for the original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”)
manufacturing industry. The Group will focus on investing
in new technology that gives the Group the ability to
produce innovative new products different from other
similar products manufactured at other OEM factories.
The Group expects to place even more resources to
expand the Mainland China market as we continue to see
weakness in Japan, USA and Europe markets in FY2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During FY2013, although the Group successfully
launched several air purifiers, and grooming products in
China and USA, this effort was offset by the weak demand
from and the significant decrease in turnover of the
Japanese market because of approximately 30%
depreciation of Japanese Yen. The Group will formulate
a new strategy in FY2014 to improve our turnover and
profit.

In anticipation of the sales growth over the next few years
with continuous new product launch, our Group invested
over HK$18,616,630 in new production equipment in
FY2013. We will continue to upgrade our manufacturing
processes in FY2014 by investing in new moulding
machines and related processes.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 36 Hong
Kong staff members and provides them with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the
Mainland China employs approximately 500 staff
members, and workers employed directly or indirectly
ranged from 2,000 to 3,000 persons during the year.
Remuneration is determined by reference to their
qualifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group does not foresee any substantial exposure to
foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of financial
instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is not
considered.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech
Centre, 8 On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the
financial year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the
financial year are as follows:

BEECENERNAREFEHE2013F 12831 B ILEE 2 F3R
A RIZ BTSSR -

TELEEME

AR E—HERBEMAZN EHRAE - EMHERN
TEXBHHAREREN AL BL FEHREZF L1812
1801-1813% ©

ETBXRK
ADEZEBEBRHERAES AT BEBHREMBS
RASMBRIBRRM 12 -

AEE 2 T BXBRIWEEBOMBERMHHRERME0 -

TEREFRHER

AEEzT2HERMELHASBEFE 2 RBELHE
ERMZADLWT :

Percentage of
The Group’s total

rEBZEHES R
Sales Purchases
HESH REE
The largest customer SPNEYS 23% N/A 3@ A
Five largest customers in ARBFEA 89% N/A 35
aggregate
The largest supplier BAMER N/A 38 F 23%
Five largest suppliers in AR EEEET N/A 38 F 42%

aggregate

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers during the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 48 to
123.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of

HK$33,004,604 (2012: HK$47,001,236) have been
transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 2 HK cents).
The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of 4 HK cents per share (2012: 5 HK cent per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$7,750 (2012: HK$15,600).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Company
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 21(c) to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEE®RE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Alternate Directors:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun

(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae; Mr. Mok Kin Hing; Mr, Leung, Michael
Kai Hung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang will retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming 2014 AGM. Dr.
Wong, Philip Kin Hang has elected not to offer himself
for re-election and will retire at the conclusion of the 2014
AGM. Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae; Mr. Mok Kin Hing and
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2014 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors in
the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERADFA 2RO R AERRDES

MR2013F12A318  FEZFRARA - B A& R EiEH
FE (EERBHFRHAEGE ((BHEH])) 2 Bkmn RiEEH
R - RIBARRRKEFBKRBOIEIS2EMZE < B MAT
BAoEE - HRE ETTAR RS0 E M ETT AR E R HETT
BHERX IR ESTR (MBEESFA) BB QR MR
2T

(i) Interests in issued shares () BITROES
Number of shares
RO E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Share Shares
Interests  Interests Interests  Options Total &FE1T
BAEZ ZEER EEED B B BRAESX
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(3E1) (3£5)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae RN LA 14,377,584 150,000 91,497,597 - 106,025,181 22.67%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(7#2) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HEHAE 11,839,448 = - 6,800,000 18,639,448 3.99%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & X &L 4 13,417,972 = - 2,800,000 16,217,972 3.47%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RfEmALE 625,000 = - 5,800,000 6,425,000 1.37%
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 'Y TET 4,450,000 - 35,755,688 - 40,205,688 8.60%
(Note 4)
(3%4)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIFUE ST - = - 1,950,000 1,950,000 0.42%
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRART - - - 4,450,000 4,450,000 0.95%
Independent Non-Executive — BUFEH{TEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2RIt 4E 3,694,300 = - 093,800 4,688,100 1.00%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 644,300 = - 993800 1,638,100 0.35%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mRALE 1,323,800 = = - 1,323,800 0.28%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE = = - 300,000 300,000 0.06%
Alternate Directors REF
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRALE = = - 1,350,000 1,350,000 0.29%
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RITHEE 1,700,000 = - 930,000 2,630,000 0.56%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the

Directors who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

(3) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder
of 91.7% of the issued share capital of Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which
owned 13,615,837 and 77,881,760 shares respectively
in the Company as at 31 December 2013.

(4) Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial shareholder
of 50% of the issued capital of Ho Kit Man Inc. and
Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., which owned
35,669,688 and 86,000 shares in the Company
respectively as at 31 December 2013.

(5) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares.

(i)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the
Scheme approved by shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details
of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

Participants

To give eligible participants
incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

(i)  Directors, employees of any
member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

(i) Holder of any securities
issued by any member of the
Group or any Controlling
Shareholder of the Company
or any company controlled by
a Controlling Shareholder;

(iii) (a) any business or joint
venture partner,
contractor, agent or
representative of;

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to; or

(c) any customer or
distributor of goods or
services of;

any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder
or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above
classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for
issue and the
percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as at
the date of the
annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities
must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period
for which an
option must be
held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable
on acceptance
of the option

Period within which
payments must
be made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life
of the Scheme

42,058,600 ordinary shares and
9.01% of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any 12-
month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(i) the average closing price of the
shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer of
the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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Report of the Directors
EEE®RE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value
per share at 31 December 2013 was HK$1.06) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company.

No. of options

BRESTE @

M2013%F12H318  £% - EE N HAMSBEA TRERE
FHEANT#LE  ZEBRERIEBIET S SHLIE
RIERE1ETEL - TREARQFRD (R20135F12H 31
ASRMEAR1.06757T) - BIEL & W - &K
FHREAEMNRE -—BRAQFZ2EBR -

BhRESA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2013 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
120135 RER RER RER  RERH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1818 Bz FH2 E¥z  Xf7ffz  Date granted BRETTE perShare RHAHZ
&% BREHE BREE BREZE BREZE RHAH ZHH ERORE  BRTE
HK$ HK$
oy BT
Directors
gz
Executive Directors:
HITEE:
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000 - 20July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
BERLE 20126 7R 208 19 July 2022
201247R208%
202247H 190
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EREUEE 200856308 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
20185664 29A
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012 7R 20H 19 July 2022
201267A208ZE
202247F198
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 800,000 - - 800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BXELE 2008464 30A 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
201846/ 29H
3,000,000 - - (1,000,0000 2,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7A20H 19 July 2022
201247R20B8 %
20226 7R19A
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,800,000 - - (1,000,000) 2,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BRELE 2008667 30H 29 June 2018
2008%66A308 %
201846/ 29H
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7R 208 19 July 2022
201247R20B%
202247F 190
——
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE @
No. of options
BRENA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2013 the year the year theyear  Yearend which Options Exercise  of options*
R20135 RER RER RER  RERKH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1818 Bz d#2 EiEz  Rffffz  Date granted BRETTE per Share REAHz
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH ZHH BROKE  SRTE*
HK$ HK$
AT B
Non- Executive Directors:
FHTES:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 - (493,000) - - 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
"RTFHL 200556215 5 June 2013
20056218 %
201356A5H
1,750,000 - - (1,750,000) - 30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200846 A 30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
201856 429A
1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5A
1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) - 20July2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012678208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 = = = 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
FRIEBEE 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
201856 429A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5A
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267R208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
FRALT 2008564308 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
201856 429A
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267R208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE @
No. of options
BRENA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2013 the year the year theyear  Yearend which Options Exercise  of options*
120135 RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1818 Bz d#2 EiEz  Rffffz  Date granted BRETTE per Share REAHz
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH ZHH BROKE  SRTE*
HK$ HK$
AT B
Independent Non- Executive
Directors:
BUFHTEE :
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
2REEE 200856308 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
20185629
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5R
300,000 - - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012£7R208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 = = = 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BLELA 200846 H30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30HE
201856 429A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5A
300,000 - - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267R208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A
Mr. Ng Yiu Ming 300,000 - - (300,000) - 20July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
{4 201267420 19 July 2022
2012F7A206ZE
20226 7R19A
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun - 300,000 - - 300,000 18 January 2013 18 January 2013 to 0.860 0.860
BEELE 201317188 17 January 2023
2013F1A18BZE
20236 1R17H
—
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE @
No. of options
BRENA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2013 the year the year theyear  Yearend which Options Exercise  of options*
120135 RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1818 Bz d#2 EiEz  Rffffz  Date granted BRETTE per Share REAHz
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH ZHH BROKE  SRTE*
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Alternate Directors:
REE:
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BRAEE 200846 A 30H 29 June 2018
200856308 E
201856/ 29A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510A6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6HE
2019£10A5A
600,000 - - - 600,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7A20H 19 July 2022
201267A208%E
202057 A19A
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - - 930,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
R & 20085630 29 June 2018
200856308 E
201856/ 29A
800,000 - - (800,000) - 20July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7H20H 19 July 2022
2012F7A208ZE
202257A19A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE @
No. of options
BRENA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2013 the year the year theyear  Yearend which Options Exercise  of options*
120135 RER RER RER  RERKH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1818 Bz d#2 EiEz  Rffffz  Date granted BRETTE per Share REAHz
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH ZHH BROKE  SRTE*
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Employees 417,000 - (417,000) - - 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
E& 2005%6H21H 5 June 2013
2005F6A21HZE
201356 A5H
8,208,000 - - (24380000 5770,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200866430 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
2018564 29A
2,885,000 - - (2,065,000) 820,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20095 10A6H 5 October 2019
20096 10A6EE
2019510A5A
19,803,000 - - (14,052,000) 5,751,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201246 7H20H 19 July 2022
2012F7A206E
20226 7R19A
Other eligible persons 50,000 - (50,000 - - 21June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
EaERAL 200556A21H 5 June 2013
2005F6H218%F
201356 A5H
3,900,000 - - (800,000) 3,100,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200846 A 30H 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
201856 429A
250,000 - - (250,000 - 60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096107 6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EE
20196 10A5H
3,900,000 - - (8,650,000) 250,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267R208 19 July 2022
2012F7H208%
202278 19A

76,523,600 300,000 (960,000)

(33,805,000) 42,058,600
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the options were granted or exercised (as the
case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(l)(ii) and note 20 to the financial
statements respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2013 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the Directors,
the following persons/entities, other than the Director, had
an interest in the shares and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

r

FTERRRAQF 2RO REERS < s

R2013F 124318 AR RIRIEEFIKHI 53361548
GEzREELM RESEELAGEEREATARE
R TIAL BEEBEES) RALQEIRG « HEEK
B REFFHEERIBEFEFEOIEXVIELE 2 K35 BIESZAR
PIN/NEI Bl 2ol

Number of shares

B E
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Shareholders Interests interest S EBER BEIET
BRERER LEERE REEE ROEEYE RHBEDE
Substantial shareholders FERR
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai FMELt 150,000 91,497,597 14,377,584 106,025,181 22.67%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(2) (1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Diamond-Harvest Limited 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 16.66%
(Note 3)
(33)
Silver Talent Development PUERER AT - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 11.35%
Limited
Mrs. Wong Cheng, BEYEELL - 35,755,688 4,450,000 40,205,688 8.60%
Gertrude Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(3%4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 7.63%
(Note 5)
(3F5)
q
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ interests in
shares and underlying shares” above.

(2) These shares were held through Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited,
companies beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai and her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(3) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interest in shares and underlying shares”
above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok
Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 124 of this annual report.
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EEEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year ended 31 December 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which cover all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company in the preceding
three years.

By order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBE

The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The Board of
the Company believes that shareholders can derive
maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
with an exception of deviations from code provision A.4.1
of the CG Code in respect of the service term of
independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to retirement by rotation.

None of the existing non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association. Besides, the Company has also received
the annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive director and the Board
believes that independent non-executive Directors
continue to be independent. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the standard of the Company’s corporate
governance practices is not lower than those required in
the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for senior management
and specified persons who are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2013.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference
for all committees in writing and specifies clearly the
power and responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed
for an unspecified term. Please refer to page 18 of this
annual report for composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
submitted to the Company annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and
confirms that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent parties as defined in the Listing Rules. Mr.
Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed on 16 March
1988; Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed on 12
December 1994; Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on 2
July 2004 and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun was appointed
on 1 January 2013. The appointment of Directors is not
fixed for a specified term, but, they are subject to the
retirement and re-election requirements at every annual
general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association.

SEERBE

LERRNFERE  2RESTERRENEHE2013F12 731

m
%F*
ﬁ

$A IS ﬁﬁ%@%@%%%@&%%%i%?ﬁ@ﬂé%
g AEKZES  FMZES  RiERZBEg -EFS
Aiﬁ Tﬁﬁxéﬂﬁ"]ﬁ%ﬁiééel BRFIARENBENE

m

EEg

EXo0E4RNTES  SERIFNTESRARBIIEHR
TEE - BRIFNTEZ (BRBIUFATES) 2R EE
BEREFY - FRHAANFRF18H -

AARZBIIEATESEFA LTRAUNER - AR

A RIRIE E R AIE3 13EEEN B B ERRE
BRI MRS 2 B I MW R A B ENITESY
B LEmRBAAFARE 2B AT o RRUSSCER19884F3A
16 HEERE « B ELAEM4F 128 12BESE - iR
FRSC R 2004F 7 A2B B R EREEE LR 2013F 18
1HEZRT - B ZAYEBRTTH  EREERRBS
AEREEBTHEERERRARERETZRE °

ZE-ZFFR FIREBEXBERAQA 35



Corporate Governance Report

TRERBE

The family relationship among the Directors is
summarized as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong, Philip
Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Mr. Wong, John
Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and uncle of Mr.
Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit
are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong, Raymond
Man Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG
Code so that the Directors can keep abreast of the
information to perform their duties and responsibilities.
The Board convened 8 meetings in 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERKRE

The attendance of the Directors is as follows: BEELEBRAT
Attendance
No. of meetings
attended/
No. of meetings
held during
term of service Attendance
Director Name HEHESBERE Rate
EEEE FHRERRH HE=E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae =N A (E/E)

(Chairman) 8/8 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BERHEE 7/8 88%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ~ &EX@E%LE 8/8 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing SRR 7/8 88%
Non-Executive Directors FHEHITESE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang mE TFIELT 7/8 88%
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng AR IE I 5 A& 6/8 75%
Ms Li, Yinghong TRAT 2+ 6/8 75%
Independent Non-Executive BUHHITEE

Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRAHE S & 8/8 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da SBIESLE 7/8 88%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIRER S 8/8 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun mEELAE 8/8 100%
The remuneration of the Directors is determined with ZBEEHME 2 EHEZERARANBHEEEE - AR

reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and the
current market conditions. No Director is allowed to
participate in determining his own remuneration. The
remuneration received by the Directors from the Company
during the year is set out in Note 7 of the financial
statement. The Board has set up an independent
professional consulting procedure and upon reasonable
request, so that the Directors are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the
Company also held meeting with independent non-
executive Directors without presence of executive
Directors during the year.

The Company maintained the training records received
by each of the Directors in FY2013.
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TRERBE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in
accounting or legal matters. The audit committee was
established with specific written terms of reference,
mainly responsible for reviewing the financial statements
and annual and interim reports and accounts of the
Company, submitting relevant reports and
recommendations to the Board, reviewing the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and making recommendations on the
appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting
the results and recommendations of the audit committee
to the Board after each meeting.

In 2013, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance
are as follows:

EREES

ERZEGHARBUIIFATESAN - EEHZEETE
ELERR BRZECCAUEREEIZAFRHAN
RENMBRRRFERBLFRERKE  RAEFSR
RERABERERER EHARRZMBEE - REE
2R EBREERGMAARRZBEDORE - HMREMA
BERITZEAREERLES - RBELERERZES
MEF AERBRAERRMNEFTEREERZEENS
BERLIERE

M2013%5F - EREZESHEH2RAEHE - KEXFE LD
T

Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESEBERE Rate
REER FHRERRE HE =
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung ~ RREUESE A (/)

(Chairman) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BioEkRL 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (ib e 2/2 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2012 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2013
and the interim results announcement, considering the
accounting standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory
letter about audit submitted by the auditors to the
management and the response of the management, the
basis of opinion and qualified opinion (if any) made by
the auditors in their report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of
the remuneration committee to the Board after each
meeting.

In 2013, the remuneration committee convened 1
meeting. Members of the remuneration committee and
their attendance are as follows:

TRELERE

FHEES
FNZEQm4BBUIINTESTR2BATESEX -
MEEGEXREREETIEAERZMNIMEESTRER
EEABNFMAIR  BEATESRSREEEOFM
8 BREANE  RRESERERBESS - REEEER
FHEZBEMIF BENBREZRAEZSHRETM
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R2013%F - HFMZB @ BETIREZE - RKERHFERER

mF :
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Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESBERE Rate
RE AT FHAERRE i FE R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung  ZRUE 4 (£ FE)

(Chairman) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BioELA 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HBRR £ 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun EEELE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & X@E%LE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man mRHPSEE 0/1 0%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during
the year included reviewing the remuneration structure,
remuneration policy and bonus system of the Group,
assessing performance of executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.

FHZE e EFEMMN ITERERIAEENHFHAE
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TRERBE

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior
management based on their responsibilities,
qualifications and working performance. No Director or
any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to the Directors, employees and
other eligible participants. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 20 to the financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming
(Chairman), Mr. Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan,
Anthony Ren Da and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The
nomination committee is to deal with the appointment,
re-election and retirement of Directors.

In 2013, the nomination committee convened 1 meeting.

AEENHFHBRREARTEERSRERAEBRETHN
BE BERTFREMBTCEMNS - REEFHEME
BAT2TFREEAGHNINE - AR RERMBEAREEILA

HBES  BEREMAERAL - BEEFS ZFEE
R BmER M FE20 ©

REEES
RAREGMARELFRTES  ARAKE (ER) - R
RS  BEEAERBRELEMAR - RAZEE
BEENET  ERRECNER -

&
S|
v

R2013%F - RBRZBEBETIREGZE - KERHFERBR

u

Members of the nomination committee and their 1T :
attendance are as follows:
Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HELHESRRE Rate
REEH FHAEBRE HE=R
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) HBREEE (F/F) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRI & 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BioEkRAL 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 1/1 100%
ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EZEE2kEEEMNA®

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets
and business development plans, approving major
agreements and matters, and monitoring the
performances of senior management. It is also
responsible for corporate governance with a view to
enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the three general
managers, the management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The
Board will review those arrangements on a regular basis
to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of the
Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman
is responsible for the operation of the Board and the
general managers are responsible for managing the
operations of the Group. Their functions have been clearly
divided to ensure a balanced distribution of power and
no authority will concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company.
The chairman ensures that the Board to operate
effectively and perform its proper duties and discuss all
important and proper matters in a timely manner. The
chairman is responsible for convening Board meetings,
consulting, determining and approving the agenda of
each Board meeting, and ensuring that Directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a
timely manner. The chairman oversees the structure,
number of members and composition of the Board and
makes recommendations to the Board and the relevant
committees on any intended changes. The chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and
procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for the
Group’s financial reporting, internal control, material
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procurement and control, logistics, customs, taxes and
legal matters and compliance, coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff
and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure
smooth and effective operation of the Company’s
operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall
operations and implementing the Board’s operating
strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all
departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production,
quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company'’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
supervising all personnel issues at our Nansha production
facilities, all capital equipments installation and disposal,
and overseeing the participation of all employees in the
development programs to optimize costs and make sure
the facilities of the Company are in full compliance with
local, international and environment laws and standards.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as the Director
from time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or
add a new member to the Board. For nomination, the
nominee’s qualifications, capabilities and potential to
make contribution to the Company shall be taken into
consideration by the nomination committee.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is a
U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance of
the finance department, the Board will ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable
accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services (including review of interim financial information
and tax services) for the year ended 31 December 2013
provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate
were approximately HK$650,000, and HK$1,370,000
respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 46 to
47.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
the general meetings. Registered shareholders of the
Company receive notices of general meetings by post.
The notice of general meeting contains the agenda, the
proposed resolutions and the voting form. All
shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend the
annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Shareholders who are unable
to attend the general meeting can fill in the proxy form
attached with the notice of general meeting and return
the same to the share registrar or registered office of the
Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a
general meeting if the Company has received requests
from shareholders of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention
of the Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1803,

18th Floor, Grandtech Centre,
8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

2. By facsimile: (852) 2341 8669

3. Byemail: ril@rilhk.com

Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at
a general meeting shall follow the procedures below.
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Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who
have a relevant right to vote may request the Company
to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

i) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at that meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received
by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the request relates; or
(ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
A request to circulate shareholders’ statement must be
received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which it relates. Such request may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu”) has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company since 1 March 2012.
Ms. Liu is responsible for ensuring that the board is fully
appraised of the relevant corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2013.

Ms. Liu resigned as the company secretary of the
Company on 24 January 2014 and Mr. Lo, Wai Keung
Eric was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 24 January 2014.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 B BLAT R

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG KB its

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Raymond Industrial Limited

AREXERAA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 48
to 123, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’s RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2014

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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Consolidated Income Statement ‘

(For the year ended 31 December 2013)

(B E20134F 124318 1FFJE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABMAREN) r—-
2013 2012
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 5t il ok
Turnover BHER 3 1,182,806,329 1,278,078,943
Cost of sales 85 & P AR (1,042,827,550) (1,127,016,376)
Gross profit EF 139,978,779 151,062,567
Other revenue EHiA 4 1,317,881 1,215,510
Other net loss H A FEE 4 (7,308,755) (1,584,789)
Selling expenses HEEM (16,654,609) (18,093,487)
General and administrative —RITHER
expenses (72,610,119) (72,610,353)
Profit before taxation BB A % A 5 44,723,177 59,989,448
Income tax Frig®t 6 (11,718,573) (12,988,212)
Profit for the year and FANUNET)
attributable to equity B A FEREF
shareholders
of the Company 33,004,604 47,001,236
Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic, HK cents AR B 7.27 10.87
Diluted, HK cents s B 7.16 10.80

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set
out in note 21(b).

The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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| Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

—_— (For the year ended 31 December 2013)
= = 32

FmEZTHEBERZR

(B 22013 127318 1L F /&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB¥REN)
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
B B
Profit for the year FERA 33,004,604 47,001,236
Other comprehensive income FEHM2mEWKE :
for the year:
ltem that may be reclassified IR EBERENREMNIER ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on —MERINEBOI B RREERN
translation of financial EHZR  BHIEZFE
statements of overseas
subsidiaries, net of nil tax 11,580,747 (247,783)
Total comprehensive income ZAAFRBRREEFEZ2ZHRZETHE
for the year and attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company 44,585,351 46,753,453

The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the #HKES5EEF123B 2 AEKREEHLREMEREZ
consolidated financial statements. — & o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(At 31 December 2013)

REEERER

(20134 12A31A#E y .
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABMAREN)
2013 2012
Note HK$ HKS
B 5 it &
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets & E & E 11
- Property, plant and equipment —#1% - W= M & 196,863,595 210,526,589
— Interests in leasehold —RELEHE
land held for own use BEERZ
under operating leases T b e 9,538,150 9,658,012
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 13(b) 7,987,301 8,995,749
214,389,046 229,180,350
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14 144,812,849 125,047,813
Trade and other receivables B 5 & A b e W AR IR 15 213,706,202 273,613,609
Tax recoverable AR [O R TE 13(a) 1,845,235 -
Cash and cash equivalents RehkFeEBEER 16 223,736,803 149,241,346
584,101,089 547,902,768
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHAMEMNKRIE 17 195,697,660 205,674,956
Dividends payable FET AR B 144,983 167,502
Tax payable e HEIE 13(a) 6,940,042 12,275,212
202,782,685 218,117,670
Net current assets REBEEFE 381,318,404 329,785,098
Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 595,707,450 558,965,448
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE 13(b) 182,322 193,033
NET ASSETS BEERE 595,525,128 558,772,415
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EERARHEE
Share capital &% 7R 21(c) 233,389,630 216,487,130
Reserves & 362,135,498 342,285,285
TOTAL EQUITY B 595,525,128 558,772,415
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of A2014F 3528 HEE =4t L IRRET) 3 -
directors on 28 March 2014.
Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
HER BEX#
Director Director
2 E
The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the HNFESSEEF 12838 M AEKEEFREVBEHRR L

consolidated financial statements.
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Balance sheet

(At 31 December 2013)

EERER

(20135 12A318#ZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB RHEMN)

2013 2012
Note HK$ HK$
s B ki
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets ETEE&EE
- Property, plant and equipment —#1% - &= M & 11 881,464 1,524,823
Investments in subsidiaries B DRI E 12 231,357,015 231,357,015
232,238,479 232,881,838
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 14 1,393,909 730,681
Trade and other receivables g5 M H b EWERIE 15 179,725,181 241,888,088
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUYHTE N 7] BREE 12 43,278,871 8,726,557
Tax recoverable AR B 75718 13(a) 1,845,235 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEBEEE 16 140,587,079 102,379,103
366,830,275 353,724,429
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables B 5 R A MR IRIE 17 111,089,012 129,102,551
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBH B R RIBRIE 12 24,410,059 28,377,998
Dividends payable FEAT IR B 144,983 167,502
Tax payable JE TR I8 13(a) - 2,529,793
135,644,054 160,177,844
Net current assets RBEEFE 231,186,221 193,546,585
Total assets less BEERRBERS
current liabilities 463,424,700 426,428,423
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 13(b) 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS EEFRE 463,276,458 426,280,181
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 21
Share capital & A 21(c) 233,389,630 216,487,130
Reserves & 229,886,828 209,793,051
TOTAL EQUITY R 463,276,458 426,280,181

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 28 March 2014.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae
HEA
Director

EF

The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

R2014F 328 HEE @il MR TIE -

Raymond Wong Man Hin

BEXE
Director

EF

HNFOAEF123A ZMERERUFLRAMBRERZ
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Consolidation Statement of Changes in Equity |

(For the year ended 31 December 2013)
REERBER

(B E20134F 124318 1FFJE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

T

-

L

PRC
statutory
Share Share Exchange Capital Retained reserve Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings H equity
B RAGE ELfE EAGE RERA HERE RitER
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
iz ok ot ot ok ok ok ot
Balance at 1 January 2012 #2012%1A1H 216,103,630 191,702,665 75,446,060 4,951,220 15,193,794 30,107,486 533,504,855
Changes in equity for 2012: 2012F 2 E# 28
Profit for the year REF R - - - - 47,001,236 - 47,001,236
Exchange differences AERIEBH
on translation of financial IHRRELN
statements of overseas ERES
subsidiaries - - (247,783) - - - (247,783)
Total comprehensive income ~ ANE2H M #BH - - (247,783) - 47001236 - 46753453
Dividends approved in ke
respect of
- current year - A% 21(b)(i) - - - - (8,648,845) - (8,648,845)
- previous year - E 21(b)(i) - - - - (17,288,690) - (17,288,690)
Equity-settled share-based Bz (B AR
payment transactions RERRSH - - - 3,927,812 - - 3,927,812
Shares issued under BERERRT
share option scheme f&iA
- gross proceeds -Ehs 21(c)(ii) 383,500 140,330 - - - - 523,830
- transfer from capital reserve —f AR REEER - 73,058 - (73,058) - - -
Cancellation of share options  FUAHE IR & - - - (431,577) 431,577 - -
Balance at 12012612318
31 December 2012 R%2013%1A1A
and 1 January 2013 33 216,487,130 191,916,053 75,198,277 8,374,397 36,689,072 30,107,486 558,772,415
Changes in equity for 2013: 20135 2 E# 25
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - 33,004,604 - 33,004,604
Exchange differences on AERINERH
translation of financial BBRRELN
statements of overseas EREE
subsidiaries - - 11,580,747 - - - 11,580,747
Total comprehensive income A% 2 Y% B - - 11,580,747 - 33,004,604 - 44,585,351
Appropriation to REETERERN
PRC statutory reserve - - - - (4,402,211) 4,402,211 -
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of
— current year - 1 21(0)(i) - - - - (9,228,585) - (9,228,585)
- previous year - A 21(b)(ii) - - - - (23,048,713) - (23,048,713)
Equity-settled share-based  BZER UKL A
payment transactions ERR 5 - - - 30,750 - - 30,750
Shares issued under share B EE %72
option scheme f&ip
- gross proceeds 6 21(c)(ii) 16,902,500 7,511,410 - - - - 24,413,910
~ transfer from capital reserve —HERFEEED - 3,480,152 - (3,480,152) - - -
Cancellation of share options B & B 12 - - - (37,271) 37,211 - -
Balance at 120135124318
31 December 2013 <33 233,389,630 202,907,615 86,779,024 4,887,724 33,051,438 34,509,697 595,525,128
The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the HRNFES5BEZF 1238 2MERAEKEFHREVBREKZ

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(For the year ended 31 December 2013)
= A =B
GEHRERER

(B E2013F 124318 IFFEJE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ¥ R E )
2013 2012
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 i ok
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation B 50 A& A 44,723,177 59,989,448
Adjustments for: P
— Amortisation of interests —HERBELEHEE
in leasehold land held FHEERZ
for own use under g
operating leases 5(b) 426,329 413,212
— Depreciation — e 5(b) 37,994,382 35,514,335
— Equity-settled share-based —EmEN RN A
payment transactions AW 5 30,750 3,927,812
— Foreign exchange loss, net —EHFEE 3,295,603 498,175
- Reversal of write-down of — EEBEFEFE
inventories, net (1,683,784) (5,423,676)
— Interest income —F B A 4 (1,317,881) (1,215,510)
— Net loss on disposal of —HEWE - BER
property, plant and B2 FEE
equipment 4 447,922 678,623
Operating profit before EEESBHHILYE
changes in working capital 2 Al 83,916,498 94,382,419
(Increase)/decrease (gm R FEE
in inventories (18,081,252) 35,855,944
Decrease/(increase) in B () B S K
trade and other receivables H b e U BR 1R 59,907,407 (67,881,586)
Decrease in trade and B E B K H At e BRIE
other payables (9,977,296) (34,050,974)
Cash generated from REEE RS
operations 115,765,357 28,305,803
Tax paid: MIEZH -
— Hong Kong profits tax —FRBNEH
(paid)/refunded, net (X ) /iR E (6,654,644) 4,183,532
- Overseas tax paid — N IES B (11,011,669) (3,649,530)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZHSFE
operating activities 98,099,044 28,839,805
Investing activities RETH

Payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of

XINBEBEME  BE
&
HEWE - BE R

(18,616,630)

(24,130,477)

property, plant and equipment HRETSRIE 89,864 216,813
Interest received R A 1,317,881 1,215,510
Net cash used in REFEXZHZ

investing activities ReFE (17,208,885) (22,698,154)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) |

(For the year ended 31 December 2013)

HMEBEERER @) | —
(Bt 220134 12831 H 1 FE) | "‘

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN) r-

2013 2012 h

Note HK$ HK$
Ff 5 bt ko
Financing activities MEEH
Proceeds from shares BITHRER S
issued under share 2 WEs
option scheme 21(c)(ii) 24,413,910 523,830
Dividends paid TATRR B (32,299,817) (26,141,182)
Net cash used in MEFTBHIZHZ
financing activities ReFHEE (7,885,907) (25,617,352)
Increase/(decrease) in cash #m (BD)EER
and cash equivalents HeEHEHEH 73,004,252 (19,475,701)
Cash and cash MA1RZRER
equivalents at 1 January RE&%EEH 149,241,346 169,334,260
Effect of foreign INEEXEH o FE
exchange rate changes 1,491,205 (617,213)
Cash and cash M12B31AZRER
equivalents at 31 December H&Z{EEH 16 223,736,803 149,241,346

The notes on pages 55 to 123 form part of the HNES5EEF 1238 2k RAKESHEEMBREZ
consolidated financial statements. — &b o

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B B &£

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

(LB REN)

| NEER
FIRBEARAR ([ARF)) RESTMART - A =M
PERR T BEL SRS BT AY AR F AR EETR
[>18%1801-1813F

2 FESHEX
(@ BEHREBH

HZE2013F12A31H L FEZ GV BREBIEART X
HtEBAR (G IAEH]) Z8&AE -

hEGRAVBRENDBEMEEAZESH KRS LD
([BEAMBRESEL] R - LABARRESESFE
R ([EFSHMAE]) BHEZEERB 2 @ERIEBHS
HREER - BASTEL ([HESER]) kRE - &5
RREFTRAURBBR GO ZHBERT - WELREHHB
BENMTEBEBRERIFMERARZFR EMHRAZEA
TR o

BERMAGCEM LA REERT T BB REE
Al RARERARBZEAGTMEERER - FLH
M) et AARBER ST RREI M EANF RIE
FEHENMBERRNOER -

AEERBZEANGTHREBEHINNT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.

q
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

- Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

- HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
- HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
- HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

- Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

- Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that
would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in these financial statements has
been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities.
It introduces a single control model to determine whether
an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns. The adoption does not change
any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1
January 2013.

(LB REN)

2 FESHEE®)

() BFBXE2H

BRI ASEEM SR RETEBMBREEL
RAERBRARB 2 EME R ERER - T &L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The adoption of other revisions, amendments and new
HKFRSs has had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRS
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 28).

(d)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for its intended use.

q
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at
the following annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which
are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the
building could be measured
separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease
(see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line

9.0% - 33.3% straight line

25.0% reducing balance and
18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

(f)  Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(LB REN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Fontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except where the land held
for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with accounting policy set out
in note 2(g)(ii).

—
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

q
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR B it @

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases;
and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)
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(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)
Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(g)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(0)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

()  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes
for the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

(ii)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(m)).

—
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible persons as
consideration for share options of the Company. The fair
value of the services or goods received in exchange for
the grant of the share options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the share options, which
is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the counterparties have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (kontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is
initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(0)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

(LB REN)

2 FESHEE®)

(o) EFHMBER BERIAKE @

() CEHMBER(GE

i AEEELMBIER - BROXTHECIRSE - FRIEsE
A e At A E) BRIV SRR R RN BRI R A b B R IR
PRYIRFE WA o fif B 1 b FEER A9 A (8 2 YRR S AT IR - R
ERRBERRILEREENARBBERER - M 8K
B E A W HME - RN TR EMDEEU AR I8 s
RAEMNFHAR

T ERBELEWRANEREEEELMFEERELER
FIREROFEIERBAESE o I - WMOEROFEEA
BRATRE AR R ERAASEBISHER(INZEHAEBERI
K& RETE BB IR R R R Y AR BB BR A S LA JE A 5Kk
H (VP RN SRR I EE) N BR - BERE
M 5E2(0) (i FERR °

(i) EHtEAERIREE

IMRAEERARBARCRE 2 EH AR ERLMETER
- & B BUEEM S INR I A AR A 58 2 [T
Atz B BB E 2 HMM B EHEER - MRERE
BEEX  ARBETESEFAREXHZREHEER -

T =FFH MNREXERAQA 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(r)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(LB REN)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

q

1 74

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR B it @

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(t) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of electrical home appliances.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns and value added
tax or other sales taxes.

(LB REN)

2 FESHEE®)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements{ontinued)
iR B B = @)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) - —
(AB¥ REN) I - ..‘
4  OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4 HMtWARESIE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
Other revenue HAug A
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 1,317,881 1,215,510
Other net loss HthBER
Gain/(loss) on disposal HERGMIE (BE)
of scrap materials 1,044,366 (782,230)
Net exchange loss WP EE (8,948,163) (4,903,197)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEW¥ @ BE&
plant and equipment BT EE (447,922) (678,623)
Forfeiture of benefits upon REKIERESETE
termination of a provident 28 WA R
fund scheme - 3,305,249
Sample sales income e 343,024 633,708
Subsidy income g 435,766 525,722
Sundry income H b U 25 264,174 314,582
(7,308,755) (1,584,789)
5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BRBiANEA
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: B B AT I T A H0BR T OIS IR RS -
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
ol ke
(a) Staff costs (a) EERX
Salaries, wages and e TEREMBEF
other benefits 175,789,905 159,555,148
Discretionary bonuses BB 2 FE4L 1,864,000 2,887,000
Contributions to defined  EHAMFEER ST S
contribution retirement IR
plans 19,856,932 19,868,071
Equity-settled share-based #Ez51& < AR 191K
payment transactions* REBRIH* 30,750 3,551,567
197,541,587 185,861,786
* The fair value of the share options granted during the — * AEFEREZ AT EESFEE®I0,7500T (201249 : 7
year amounted to HK$30,750 (2012: HK$3,927,812) and ¥3,927,81270) EEBHER - EFR T EERESHNE
was recognised in profit or loss, of which an amount of B ) & 585 #530,7500T (20124 « ##3,551,56770) B,
HK$30,750 (2012: HK$3,551,567) has been included in BIEEREBKAF -
staff costs as the relevant share options were granted
to the employees and directors.
q
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Noth to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging (Continued):

(LB REN)

5 BB AR R ()
BB AR R DA NG TH B IE B ER ()

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
B ok

(b) Other items (b) HfEHE

Cost of inventories sold*  $H&EF &M A
Amortisation of interests ~ #ERIBLEHAE
in leasehold land held BEE Rz T
for own use under
operating leases
Depreciation e
Auditor’s remuneration % BRAT B &
Product development costs Z @ 2 & ik /&

1,042,827,550 1,127,016,376

426,329 413,212
37,994,382 35,514,335
650,000 635,000
704,021 434,464

# Cost of inventories includes HK$198,771,242 (2012:
HK$180,809,573) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, which
amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in notes 4 and
5(a) for each of these types of expenses.

# HETENAEBRERAE MERDE - BE MEED
EFEEs X H ABHA198,771,2427L (20124 : B
180,809,5737T) ' %S RENBEEN Ll &5 M4 &
5(@)EREESBERESE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)
BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

-
(A8 M B BB i) B .1

6 INCOME TAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED 6 MEBEBRRZAFEBH
INCOME STATEMENT

(a)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) REEBIXREVZHE

represents:
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
ol B
Current tax — Hong Kong REEBE - EBAEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year RF AR (FTFE13(a))
(note 13(a)) 2,324,090 4,169,207
Over-provision in respect of TFEERERS
prior years (44,779) (1,777,554)
2,279,311 2,391,653
Current tax — PRC Enterprise ZANFEEHIE — FECEMBH
Income Tax
Provision for the year AREEAE (FI5E13(a))
(note 13(a)) 8,084,837 10,387,323
Under-provision in TEERERD
respect of prior years 121,816 128
8,206,653 10,387,451
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of ERERTAEREZRN
temporary differences EXERED
(note 13(b)(i)) (B EE13(b)(i)) 1,232,609 209,108
Income tax expense FEHZH 11,718,573 12,988,212
q
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Not{es to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents (Continued):

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

(ii) Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at
the appropriate current rate of taxation ruling at
the relevant tax jurisdictions.

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

(i)

(LB REN)

BEBENEGHRBAFE G EREE MR R
16.5% (20124F : 16.5%) IR BEEH -

RSN X B BRI IR P B M (R AR A% 5k ) 2 IRAT AR K

BREFHBNESR L LGRS

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
Profit before taxation R 52 A A 44,723,177 59,989,448
Notional tax on profit before REBAEEATETE
taxation, calculated at Z R ADE M B &I
the rates applicable
to profits in the jurisdictions
concerned 9,907,603 13,763,101
Tax effect of non-deductible AR 2 B &
expenses 1,755,686 1,718,436
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERTLUA 2 T 22 (58,427) (712,894)
Effect of temporary differences TR &t > Bi 75 57 £
not recognised 36,674 (3,300)
Under/(over)-provisions TFEFRERL(BZ)
in respect of prior years, net 77,037 (1,777,426)
Others HAb - 295
Actual tax expense ERMIEX 11,718,573 12,988,212

T =FFH MNREXERAQA 79
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) . | ———
7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEME h

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuantto section 161  ZE RS RIEE B QA FUEHIE161IEFENT ¢
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Share-based
and benefits Discretionary ~ Retirement payments
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme (note) 2013
fees i BEZR contributions  Sub-total  RAER Total
he REREA 2R BHREHEE by ER At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

ok ok ok it ok ok ok

Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae ma & E

(Chairman) (FFE) 120,000 19,820 200,000 - 339,820 - 339,820
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man EHRBLE 140,000 3,910,711 300,000 240,000 4,590,711 - 4,590,711
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & 3 78 %t & 140,000 3,259,820 300,000 240,000 3,939,820 - 3,939,820
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RlEELE 120,000 1,872,500 200,000 93,750 2,286,250 - 2,286,250
Non-executive directors FHITES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 5T ET 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng AR IF & 50 A 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRRAT/NA 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Independent non- BYkHTES

executive directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2RI %0 & 180,000 - - - 180,000 - 180,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Bl EEE 180,000 - - - 180,000 - 180,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming AEmRE L E 180,000 - - - 180,000 - 180,000
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ ZBE{Z 564

(appointed on (20134

1 January 2013) 1A1HZF) 180,000 - - - 180,000 30,750 210,750
Alternate directors RES
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRITHSEE - 166,034 - - 166,034 - 166,034

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit mAMLE - - - - - - -

1,600,000 9,228,885 1,000,000 573,750 12,402,635 30,750 12,433,385

—
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7

S

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows
(Continued):

7

(LB REN)

EEME @

EEMeREFTELRRIIE1I61ERENT (&) -

Salaries,
allowances Share-based
and benefits  Discretionary  Retirement payments
Directors’ inkind bonuses scheme (note) 2012
fees o BIEZM  contributions  Sub-total Rip &R Total
we  EERER JTHL REEHR Gt e aif
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors BES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BURLE (FR)

(Chairman) 120,000 19,410 520,000 - 659,410 278,700 938,110
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRESE 140,000 3,826,443 520,000 240,000 4,726,443 278,700 5,005,143
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ~ EXE X4 140,000 3,259,410 520,000 225000 4,144,410 278,700 4,423,110
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 120,000 1,872,000 310,000 75000 2,377,000 278,700 2,655,700
Non-executive directors FYTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang gL 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIEBRE 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Ms. Li, Yinghong TR 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung ~ 2RIEE4E 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BEELE 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (HEREE 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Alternate directors REZ
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RILHEE - 161,146 - - 161,146 74,320 235,466
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRGRE - - - - - 55,740 55,740

1,420,000 9,138,409 1,870,000 540,000 12,968,409 1662910 14,631,319
Note: These represented the estimated value of share options i3t @ WEEEILZRARREEREASE FEENERESR

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

2(1)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in note 20.

51l o o182 307 SR B RSB I R 2) 1) BABR 19 /5
FHRPRPEE -

I FIBER - BIEER KB RER T8 E M
520 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B B =E (@)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) _1
(LB¥AREN)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2012: four) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other two (2012: one) individuals are as

L

8 fEARZSHMAL

ontinued)

REESEREEMA TP BIEIN (2012F  461) EE -
WEZHMES S HRKITET » R T2 (2012F : 1hD) RS

AT ZEEDHMT :

follows:
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
i ki
Salaries and other emoluments ¥4 & E b 3 B 1,278,950 792,000
Discretionary bonuses 15 2 AT AL 152,000 100,000
Retirement scheme contributions Bk & & 104,700 58,500
Share-based payments % AN EL R TE B - 46,450
1,535,650 996,950

The emoluments of the two (2012: one) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

AR H = H A 261 (20124 « 167) IS AR T -

Number of individuals

A

2013

2012

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 BB Zr = 8% 1,000,0007T 2

_—
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(Expressed in

9
(@)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$33,004,604 (2012: HK$47,001,236) and
the weighted average number of 454,047,589 (2012:
432,347,194) ordinary shares in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

inancial Statements (continued)
AR B K& @)

Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REN)

BEREF
BREXERF

9
(a)
4

BRERBFZFEZURR B REEIGEEEE T
#33,004,6047T (20124 : ##47,001,23670) MR EF R
ZEEBETIMEF BB 454,047,589 (20124
437,347,194) L@ TE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFEIRE
2013 2012

Issued ordinary shares M1A1BE #1722 L@k

at 1 January 432,974,260 432,207,260
Effect of share options TR E 2 & (M aE21(c)(ii)

exercised (note 21(c)(ii)) 21,073,329 139,934
Weighted average number 123318 2 & BRI T 19 IR B

of ordinary shares

at 31 December 454,047,589 432,347,194

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$33,004,604 (2012: HK$47,001,236) and
the weighted average number of 461,073,816 (2012:
435,303,683) ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings per share

(b) EBREFERR

TR ERF 25T E R UARA RIS EAG AR & S0 A1
#33,004,6047T (20124 : ##47,001,2367T) K HNtE F 14
% 21461,073,816 (20124 : 435,303,683) @1 & :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMMEFGRE (58)
(diluted)
2013 2012
Weighted average number of ~ R12A31H 2 EBIR 2
ordinary shares hniE TR £
at 31 December 454,047,589 432,347,194
Effect of deemed issue of RIBAR A B AR RERT 2 A
shares under the Company’s EREV/EZRTRO ZFE
share option scheme for (Bt 5£20)
nil consideration (note 20) 7,026,227 2,956,489
Weighted average number of ~ R12A31BZ E@BR 2
ordinary shares (diluted) TR £ (H5E)
at 31 December 461,073,816 435,303,683
T =FFH MNREXERAQA 83
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BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

[0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s senior management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified five reportable segments on a
geographical basis: Japan, the United States, the PRC,
Europe and rest of the world. The electrical home
appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of
the world” segment covers sales of electrical home
appliances to customers in Australia, Canada and Hong
Kong.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accrued charges and
other payables, with the exception of tax balances and
dividends payable, attributable to the manufacture and
sale activities of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from other revenue and net loss,
and the depreciation and amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as other head office or corporate
administration costs.
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Notés to the Consolidated

(Expressed

10
(@)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest
income and expense from cash balances managed
directly by the segments, depreciation and amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales are
priced with reference to prices charged to external parties
for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the year is set
out below.

Financial Statements (continued)
BR B MY @)

in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(L0385 58 1)
10 ZDFH/E @

Q) IBEE BEREE®)

RIS ARD HBEBITDAZ DAL - SIRE IR

BERAHEDE - FSWARBDE TERBHES
REBERP2ERTIENEZLED M IERBOMEEZ
DHEER c AMOMHEZBHRB2ELINHEARNZE

f o

ERARKTAEERSETREERABUDEERLE
%E‘B%‘%iﬁz;ﬁ%ﬂr%ﬁﬂm—l—x °

Electrical home appliances

ZRER
United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
EE Gl BA Bl R At
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 —HKS'000 HK$000
BETn A¥Tn BETn RETn BETR A%Tr BETIn kT BETn BUfr BETr A%Tx
Revenue from external gohxPzBA
customers 361,119 396,228 92,000 44,748 266,957 400,774 328,698 302931 134,032 133398 1,182,806 1,278,079
Inter-segment revenue REABRA - - 653,217 764,370 - - - - 1,040,594 1,182,695 1,693,811 1,947,065
Reportable segment revenue MEREABHA 361,119 396,208 745217 800,118 266,957 400,774 328,698 302931 1,174,626 1316,093 2,876,617 3,225,144
Reportable segment profit T & 2 &
(adjusted EBITDA) (B #ZEBITDA) 21214 29851 6,933 3371 20,118 30,193 24,770 22822 89497 95391 168532 181,628
Reportable segment assets  THEHBEE = - 480,364 458,983 - - - - 485817 462,183 966,181 921166
Additions to non-current  AFEEFHHTEE
segment assets Em
during the year - - 18617 23672 - - - - - 458 - 18617 24,130
Reportable segment liabllities 5% 758 & (195) (336) (140,210) (113,294) - - - - (232,824) (245205) (373,229) (358,839)
—E-ZFFR MNREXERRQA 85
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BR B M & @)

“‘

ontinued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 1

(LB¥AREN) .' ‘

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEMHE @ H
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THREIBURA -#BH BEEREEZHER

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2013 2012
HK$ HK$ i
ko sEE |
Revenue N
Reportable segment revenue i&%ﬁa‘ﬁﬂﬁl?\ 2,876,617 3,225,144
Elimination of inter-segment By SUA K 8
revenue (1,693,811) (1,947,065)
Consolidated turnover IR R 1,182,806 1,278,079
Profit Y Al
Reportable segment profit AR 5 8B A 168,532 181,628
Elimination of inter-segment W BF 5> 5 4 F1) 3 8
profits (79,398) (85,342)
Reportable segment profit HAREEHIINEP 2
derived from Group’s A R & 5 B i A
external customers 89,134 96,286
Other revenue and net loss HMWA K FEE (5,990) (369)
Depreciation and amortisation — #T8 K& # (38,421) (35,928)
Consolidated profit before 4RE BRBLRT R A
taxation 44,723 59,989
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR EDEEE 966,181 921,166
Elimination of inter-segment A 31 5 31 e AR TR 3K 8
receivables (177,523) (153,079)
788,658 768,087
Tax recoverable AR B R IR 1,845 -
Deferred tax assets EERIRE E 7,987 8,996
Consolidated total assets EBEE 798,490 777,083

—
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s to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEE|WE ®
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THREIBURA -#BH BEEREEZHER
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
bt ok
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities A R&E D EE (373,229) (358,835)
Elimination of inter-segment B8 5 51 e 1 BR TR K 8
payables 177,531 153,160
(195,698) (205,675)
Dividends payable FEAT AR B (145) (167)
Tax payable FEAS B TR (6,940) (12,275)
Deferred tax liabilities BB EARS (182) (193)
Consolidated total liabilities mEBAaR (202,965) (218,310)
(c) Major customers () EEEF
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted HEZEFMEZWA » BEF 5 IMEAKRA10%3L A
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: AT
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
bt S
Customer A EPA 271,061 408,202
Customer B ®PFB 221,980 192,369
Customer C ®PC 206,529 189,064
Customer D ZFED 183,818 N/A#
Customer E ®PE 172,119 245,187
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or ~ # BREBMATZREKA10%HIA L -
more of the total revenue.
[

—E=FFH MNREXARAA 87



| |

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

R B MY et (|
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) - | —
|1 FIXED ASSETS I EEEE
(@) The Group (@ AKH
Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land held land held
for own for own
use under use under
finance operating
leases  Buildings Furniture, leases
BE  heldfor fixtures and it Total
Construction ~ BHHE  ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor BEAE fived assets
inprogress  &fEA  HHEBA  machinery fA > vehicles  Subtotal  EAEEA aER
EEIR 2inBE  ZBEN BEREE RERRE AE Mt ozihEs  EESH
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 #2012£1F1A 9,087,545 5235120 191442227 203,382,286 77,562,767 13,196,413 499,906,358 16,588,816 516,495,174
Exchange adjustments 3 #23% (5,160) - (92632)  (B1933) (51302 (5.004)  (236,231) (9419)  (245,650)
Additions £ 4,085,866 - - 585,032 18,774,480 685,099 24,130,477 - 24130477
Transfers L4 (8,134,555) - - 2602154 5352474 179,927 - - -
Disposals & - - - (1,369,442)  (4,510,307) (606,536)  (6,486,285) - (6,486,285)

At 31 December 2012 #2012 127318 503369 5235120 191349595 205118007 97,128,112 13449699 517314319 16,579,397 533,893,716

Attlanuary 2013 H2013%151R 503369 5235120 191349595 205118007 O728,112 13449699 517314319 16579397 533893716
Exchange adjustments  {&5E 159,729 - BAT4187 4634214 3488212 303061 13759403 526,006 14,285,499
Additions ) 9,598,139 - - 1189806 7,828685 - 18,616,630 - 18,616,630
Transfers BB (9,966,395) - - 196671 9600497 169227 - - -
Disposals e - - - (1300505 (2448530)  (2097%4)  (3958,749) - (3.958,749)

At 31 December 2013 H20134 127318 4825169 5235120 196,623,782 209,838,283 115596976 13712273 545,731,603 17,105,493 562,837,096

—
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Not{es to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR B it @
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AR REN)
|1 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 1 BEE&EE @
(@) The Group (Continued) (@ F&EE@E
Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land held land held
for own for own
use under use under
finance operating
leases  Buildings Furniture, leases
BE  heldfor fixtures and it Total
Construction ~ BHEHEE  ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor BERE fived assets

inprogress  BEER BEBA  machinery fA > vehicles  Subtotal  BHER BEE
KBIE 2in@E  ZBEY HERME RERRG byt Nt oziuEs  BEAT
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

Accumulated ZHBERFE

amortisation

and depreciation:

A1danuary 2012 R20125151R - 1570534 120,610,792 121953788 24793562 8053797 276982473 6511871 283494 344
Exchange adjusiments 5 #53% - - (57444)  (36226)  (21,345) (3214)  (118,229) (3698)  (121927)
Charge forthe year ~ AEEHE - 104702 8333965 12572416 13214839 1288413 35514335 43212 35,907 547
Disposals e - - - (1,057826) (4,022404)  (510,619) (5,590,849) - (5,590,849)
At 31 December 2012 120124124318 - 167523 128,887,313 133432152 33964652 8828377 306787730 6921385 313,709,115
A1 January 2013 12013%1 A1 - 1675236 128,887,313 133432152 33964652 8828377 306787730 6,921,385 313,709,115
Exchange adjusiments 5 #58% - - 3448165 2370614 1483918 204,162 7,506,859 219629 7,726,488
Charge for the year ~ AEEHE - 104702 7361310 12300428 16,980,125 1247817 37,994,382 426329 38,420,711
Disposals HE - - - (1001337)  (2,140883)  (188,743) (3.420,963) - (3,420963)
At 31 December 2013 12013% 124318 - 1779938 139,696,788 147,011,857 50,287,812 10,091,613 348,868,008 7,567,343 356,435,351

Carrying value: REFE:

At 31 December 2013 H2013512431A 4825169 3,405,182  56,826994  62,826426 65,309,164 3,620,660 196,863,595 9,538,150 206,401,745

At 31 December 2012 #2012612431A 5033696 3550884 62462282 71685945 63,163460 4621322 210526589 9,608,012 220,184,601
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""

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements{continued)
BR B MY & @0
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) | —
Il FIXED ASSETS (Continued) I BEEEE®
(b) The Company (b) AT
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and equipment Motor
machinery &Fh - vehicles Total
R R HEREE RE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ke T B S
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2012 MR2012F1H1H 27,127,161 62,600 2,925,894 30,115,655
Additions N - - 458,717 458,717
Disposals HE - - (591,598) (591,598)
At 31 December 2012, R2012F12H31H,
1 January 2013 and 2013F1 A1 &
31 December 2013 2013 12H318 27,127,161 62,600 2,793,013 29,982,774
Accumulated REHIE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 20121818 26,201,281 58,020 1,725,842 27,985,143
Charge for the year NEEFE 575,183 4,580 390,219 969,982
Disposals HE - - (497,174) (497,174)
At 31 December 2012 7201212 831H 26,776,464 62,600 1,618,887 28,457,951
At 1 January 2013 #2013F 1818 26,776,464 62,600 1,618,887 28,457,951
Charge for the year RKERWE 350,697 - 292,662 643,359
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 27,127,161 62,600 1,911,549 29,101,310
Carrying value: SR RHE ¢
At 31 December 2013 MR2013F12H31H - - 881,464 881,464
At 31 December 2012 MR2012%F12H31H 350,697 - 1,174,126 1,524,823

q
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR B MY &L (@)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AB¥REN)
|1 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) I BEE&EE @
(c)  The analysis of carrying value of () YWEREFEINWT :
properties is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
ided ok
Medium-term leases HREEE
—in Hong Kong — &% 10,737,596 11,628,188
— outside Hong Kong — BB 59,082,730 64,051,990
69,820,326 75,680,178
Representing: K
Buildings held for own use FIEEREEY 56,826,994 62,462,282
Interests in leasehold land held REFEHREFIEERZ
for own use under TiiEsS
finance leases 3,455,182 3,559,884
Interests in leasehold land BELEHERIEFERZ
held for own use TR
under operating leases 9,538,150 9,658,012
69,820,326 75,680,178

12 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE |2
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

MEBLRREREWY YK ELQERE

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
B &
Unlisted shares, at cost LR - REAAR 232,137,582 232,137,582
Less: impairment loss B R EEE (780,567) (780,567)
231,357,015 231,357,015
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUHTE A FIERIE 81,013,407 46,461,093
Less: impairment losses B OREER (37,734,536) (37,734,536)
43,278,871 8,726,557
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERT BB A R BRIE 24,410,059 28,377,998
I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

12 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from subsidiaries include a loan to a
subsidiary of HK$38,750,000 (2012: HK$Nil) which is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.2% per annum and
repayable on demand. All of the remaining amounts due
from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

| Y
__

12 MEBATRREREW FHB A T RE
()

FEU T B A R BRIB B RN B A B B BB #38,750,0007T

(2012F : BET L) ZEREERIF - FEB12%NIEEE

Big - ERERHEARRBYHEERT 2B NREEE

Fld

e EARBRESEEN RERRFEEE -

FEAGHE XSG BERBBZHMBRRFBEDOT © K
KRG s AZ R E R -

Proportion of
ownership
interest held

Particulars of
issued and paid

Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation ERTR rEE activities
DNRAE ik FS—$:E BERAZFHE BRER TEER
Guangzhou Conquest The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Electric Company Limited* # H US$7,390,000 and sale of
BEMRINRBERERA A FAMER electrical home
7,390,000 7T appliances
HENHERA
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of 100% Property
Virgin Islands B US$1 holding
KBREXS 1REBRERIZET REME
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Electrical Appliances Y H US$22,380,000 and sale of
Development HMmER electrical home
Company Limited* 22,380,000 7T appliances
TR (EREY) BEER HENHE
BRDAN" RAEX
# The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou  # BMRIKAERERLALFR (BEED) ERERE

Conquest Electric Company Limited and Raymond
(Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development
Company Limited for the financial year ended 31
December 2013, prepared under generally accepted
accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have been

audited by EMEH SR EHEMER QA

q
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
AR B M & (a0

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REN)

I3 INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET 13 REEEBRMNFEH
(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet ( BEEERZFAEH
represents:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
bt ok it ok
Provision for the year ENCS R
(note 6(a)) (MfzE6(a))
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — &EFTEH/ 2,324,090 4,169,207 2,257,634 4,102,870
- PRC Enterprise — PEEMEH
Income Tax 8,084,837 10,387,323 - -
10,408,927 14,556,530 2,257,634 4,102,870
Provisional tax paid B S
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — & &S (4,169,206) (1,663,768) (4,102,869) (1,597,855)
— PRC Enterprise — FEIEMEN
Income Tax (1,264,914) (642,328) - -
(5,434,120) (2,306,096) (4,102,869) (1,597,855)
4,974,807 12,250,434 (1,845,235) 2,505,015
Balance of income tax TEERSHEE
provisions relating #R%E AT 3R B 7 18
to prior years 120,000 24,778 - 24,778
5,094,807 12,275,212 (1,845,235) 2,529,793
The Group The Company
rER AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
il o il B s
Tax recoverable REEBERE
recognised in MR 2 PR E I8
the balance sheet 1,845,235 - 1,845,235 -
Tax payable recognised REEBEBERE
in the balance sheet MR 2 B HIE (6,940,042) (12,275,212) - (2,529,793)
(5,094,807) (12,275,212 1,845,235

(2,529,793)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

iR B M & |
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) - —

__

I3 INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET 13 REEEGEXRWFAEH @

(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities () CHEIBELHEEEREE:
recognised:
The Group The Company
AEH b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ks S B ok
Net deferred tax assets REEBERD
recognised in TR 2 IR T IR
the balance sheet BE (7,987,301) (8,995,749) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEBBRD
recognised in R ZIEERIE
the balance sheet B 182,322 193,033 148,242 148,242
(7,804,979) (8,802,716) 148,242 148,242
() The Group (i) KEHE

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AEERGAESEABETERRY BERIE(BE) /8
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the EHAERL R Y T

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary

Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss WEER differences Total

BECEER: HEEE AREBRITE HUuEZEE A&t

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B ks B

At 1 January 2012 20121 A 1H (223,895) 52,115 (8,845,066) (9,016,846)
Effect of changes HmBeg o w2

in exchange rates - - 5,022 5,022
Charged to profit or a2k B8 2
loss (note 6(a)) e GEA)

(MfsE6(a)) 27,655 162 181,291 209,108

At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H (196,240) 52,277 (8,658,753) (8,802,716)

At 1 January 2013 M2013F1H1H (196,240) 52,277 (8,658,753) (8,802,716)
Effect of changes HmBeg o w2

in exchange rates - - (234,872) (234,872)
Charged to profit or T M kB 18 2

loss note 6(a)) Ik (FizE6(a)) 27,630 3,370 1,201,609 1,232,609

At 31 December 2013 R20135F12A31H (168,610) 55,647 (7,692,016) (7,804,979)

q
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13 INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (continued):

(ii) The Company
The Company’s deferred tax liabilities arise from

depreciation allowances in excess of the related
depreciation. There were no movements during the year.

[4 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

(LB REN)

13 REESEGEXRNMEH @

(b) CHEIELEHEEERAE:@ &)

(i) A2

AEENMFAEERBRETERRZETHRARENE
RERBFERANERITE - NRFEREEY -

14 #=E
@) REEGEBRESEE:

The Group The Company
rEE VYN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i B il okt
Raw materials JRA 70,116,024 70,140,640 1,393,909 730,681
Work in progress F R 74,489,678 54,778,645 = -
Finished goods ERK 207,147 128,528 - -
144,812,849 125,047,813 1,393,909 730,681
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b)) FERBEZIMCEIRRBAWMT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
HK$ HK$

Carrying amount of FEHEREE
inventories sold

Write-down of inventories FERE

Reversal of write-down &R A a5

of inventories

1,044,511,334
677,564

1,132,440,052
627,307

(2,361,348) (6,050,983)

1,042,827,550 1,127,016,376
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Fontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

I5 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES

-

L

R

g

15 EBEZRHEHAMEWIRE

The Group The Company
AEE RAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
pided B il ok
Trade debtors B5EHA 192,352,650 254,246,605 177,010,701 238,046,797
Other debtors HEBA 15,017,481 14,174,440 1,728,618 2,033,273
Deposits and Al RIERFIE

prepayments 6,336,071 5,192,564 985,862 1,808,018
213,706,202 273,613,609 179,725,181 241,888,088

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from certain
Group’s deposits amounting to HK$3,351,131 (2012:
HK$2,284,194) and certain Company’s deposits
amounting to HK$41,900 (2012: HK$41,900), are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the balance
sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

FIBE 5 NREMEWIRIE - REihiLke $EH3,351,131
JC (20124F : B¥62,284,19470) R A E B IZL B
41,9007T (20124 : 76 #41,9007T) b - B 1E R A Uk [E]
NERBER -

(@) PFRERDMT

REEABREERESBEBAZRRZREZABATN
T

The Group The Company
rEE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

il B ity B
Within 1 month 1E AR 78,813,499 97,131,296 76,682,631 92,090,822
1to 3 months 11 A =316 H 102,294,228 152,918,396 89,108,225 141,761,667
3 to 12 months 3E A =121 A 10,521,691 2,118,417 10,496,613 2,110,812
Over 12 months @128 A 723,232 2,083,496 723,232 2,083,496
Amounts past due mEE R 192,352,650 254,246,605 177,010,701 238,046,797

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 23(a).

q
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I5 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

(LB REN)

15 EBEZRKEMEWIRE @)

by REREZESZE®KA

BHEBAZKRRD T LB DA EEREDT

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i ke it ok
Neither past due BB BT RE
nor impaired 175,884,672 209,643,718 160,542,723 193,443,910
Less than 1 month wE DR 1A A
past due 13,797,570 40,349,054 13,797,570 40,349,054
1 to 3 months past due wE1E A =31@ A 1,244,336 1,061,004 1,244,336 1,061,004
More than 3 months B HA R B 3R A (8
but less than 12 L1218 A
months past due 825,548 2,976,798 825,548 2,976,798
More than 12 months B HA R 1216 A
past due 600,524 216,031 600,524 216,031
Amounts past due w e 16,467,978 44,602,887 16,467,978 44,602,887
192,352,650 254,246,605 177,010,701 238,046,797

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

FEM BRI B B ISR E R KB B PR B HE R AL ix °

ERREKERRERERENBUEFEAEERRRAE
Rifscsk - RIFEELR  EEEMEGELSERUERE
EEEARSCNAERER 2B D AT B FHREE
f o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsontinued)

BR B M & @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AEEREN)

.

L

l6 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS l6 BRERBEESEEIEB
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
pided ikt it T
Bank deposits RITEHER 70,094,752 62,458,091 70,094,752 62,458,091
Cash at bank and in hand $RTF R NIRS 153,642,051 86,783,255 70,492,327 39,921,012
223,736,803 149,241,346 140,587,079 102,379,103
|7 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES 17 EBSZRHEMESIKRIE
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
et ikt it T
Trade creditors B HEEA 150,493,079 159,971,577 99,311,948 116,628,399
Accrued charges and FEfT B A Rk
other payables E et ERIE 45,204,581 45,703,379 11,777,064 12,474,152
195,697,660 205,674,956 111,089,012 129,102,551

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the balance

BB S KEMEMNRBEMFERN -

REEABRGERAEZERAZRRIZEZ AN

sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: N
The Group The Company
AEE b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it B it ki
Within 1 month 1EAR 64,550,551 81,245,403 47,028,382 66,045,175
1 to 3 months 12318 A 72,577,612 69,181,877 47,204,941 49,590,691
3 to 12 months 3Z 1218 A 11,052,928 9,124,978 3,004,065 977,020
Over 12 months HBiE121E A 2,311,988 419,319 2,074,560 15,513
150,493,079 159,971,577 99,311,948 116,628,399

q
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR B K& @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I8 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
scheme is defined contribution retirement plan
administered by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June
2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant service period.

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the Group’s employees
in Hong Kong previously, after completing half a year of
service, had the option to join the Group’s defined
contribution provident fund scheme which was managed
by an independent trustee. The Group made monthly
contributions of 5% — 10% of the employees’ basic
salaries to the scheme depending on the employees’
years of service with the Group. The employees also
made monthly contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic
salaries to the scheme. The employees were entitled to
receive their entire contributions together with accrued
interest thereon at any time upon leaving the Group, and
100% of the employer’s contributions and the accrued
interest upon retirement or leaving the Group after
completing sixteen years of service or at a reducing scale
of between 5% to 90% after completing three to fifteen
years of service. The forfeited contributions made by the
Group and related accrued interest could be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. Such scheme was
terminated in April 2012. During the year ended 31
December 2012, the aggregate amount of employer’s
contributions made by the Group to the scheme was
approximately HK$85,950. Upon the termination of the
scheme, the forfeiture of benefits amounting to
HK$3,305,249 was credited to profit or loss as income in
the year ended 31 December 2012.

(LB REN)

18 FREMHKEBAREE

AEEREBRBMELBFAIEIARET B RMEK
(M) PIBEREMRE 2 BB REBRHBHIELTE R
(RESFTE)) - ZBRBEFAHB L ETESEE -
REBREEE  AEELREERHAEAREEEREH
25%ABERFEIHR - HE LRBE A AEK25,0007T
(201256 A Bl 28 #20,0007T) ° FTE HFIR R IR HH
BZERIEBAT -

B FiisafEestE AEBEREWNBRARBEIESALE
TERANEAEZ  UEEENARNEBZLZBILER
RRIBEBZ AEEE - AEBMZBETIFE LT 711E5%
Z10%EARRMER - MEB LAIZEFH CFTEs%EAE T
MR- EETEEE  ZEISUMEE2EE THFUE
AR B MR EETEROARMHIENS - LI{Em+
NEEH WA REEHARET mMIfER=FE2+AF
& - Al EE 2 A EMEFRENIES% 2 90%:T & o B TRERL &
Bz AR EF SR BRI AR 2 HR - kR ES
HEIE 20124 AR 1E - R2012F 12 A31BFE IEAE
B2 4B 85,9507 Bt IR ISR FIZ &5
53,305,249 1 2012F 12 A31 HF E IF Azt A48
=R -
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(AEEREN)

I8 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service
under the Ordinance and are eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment. The Group
is only liable to make such payments when the termination
meets the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not covered
by the aforesaid provident funds. At 31 December 2013,
the Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the
accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential liabilities
should the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make
contributions based on certain percentages of the
applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

19  BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$68,150,000 (2012:
HK$88,150,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill payables,
trade loans and trade guarantee. The amount utilised by
the Group as at 31 December 2013 under these facilities
was HK$73,883 (2012: HK$6,277).

q
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2013 12A318  AEEREHD B THRFEFHDES
BEREGED (TEH) MR CHEARTERAITEZES
RERBE - AMERKIEEZBET AEBEEANZ
BEEAZBEINBSZERRETREINERERIEEMZ
B o BATEFA UGN 2 8 TBER - AEBEE2013F 128
BIBEAELHEIPEFZREZNEFIREZ BER

F -

AEEETENMNBLARTESTEBEANZBB TRIER
REGRET S - R IR T BB A BEFIGEE - AEEK
BETRZUFAIRESREABHF I —EaoLLiEHH
R MABRAFAGHEAEASBETENMEARZER
BRAFEKRE T ZRKEHNEE -

19 RITEEHEE

fE2013F 128310 » AEEMIRTTES Z EAETEERE
E 4 58168,150,0007T (20124 : ##88,150,0007T) °
RITZEERELARNGERLE - EalE  BEREE - B
SERRESER - RANHEAEEREL AE¥K73,883
70 (20124F : B#6,2777T) °
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite (i)
directors, employees of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (iii) (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any
supplier of goods or services to, or (c) any customer or
distributor of goods or service of, any member of the
Group or any Controlling Shareholder or a company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is paid by these participants
for each lot of share options granted. The options are
exercisable from the date of grant within a period of eight
to ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(LB REN)

20 HEZENMUROGAERRKS

RAFEIA2003F6 A6 AR IERIERTE - ARARESEX
ERERERT(O)AEBETMKE QAR R 2 R
B R SR RATIERI 2 A ZES - B
(VA AEBEMKE 1R R KIERA RIS 2 A
RIFTEIT 2 AMEFZHEA  Rii)a)E X a (B
el REBERREK  (b)EMERIAREHER ;
H(C)EFMBELRDHEE - TIAEEE(AIK B FIERRA T L
FIERAR RIS 2 E R A A (TEEREREAR G
o 2FALTUBEB1I T2 REUNSINRES —HEERE -
BRI TEHR 2R BR8ZE10FEN - F1HEERE T
BAZHEFNREARR—REMALAGE
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 HERECSUROA/ERRIE @
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (@ EAXAFERTZEROT BHFAEBRKRE
are as follows: LUERR 2 REEST -
Contractual life [
Number of of options
instruments B8 Ie A
IEHE BHEH
Options granted to directors: BRERTES -
—on 21 June 2005 — 720056 H21H 10,660,000 8 years®
—on 30 June 2008 — 12200846 530H 23,461,488 10 yearst
— on 6 October 2009 — FA20099F1086H 18,901,488 10 yearst
—on 20 July 2012 — 1R20129F7 A 20H 17,900,000 10 yearst
—on 18 January 2013 — 1R2013%F1H18H 300,000 10 years®
Options granted to employees: BREXTES :
—on 21 June 2005 — 720056 521H 6,371,000 8 years®F
—on 30 June 2008 — 720086 A30H 9,830,000 10 years®
- on 6 October 2009 — H2009F10A6H 16,085,000 10 years®
~on 20 July 2012 — 201247 A 208 20,330,000 10 years4
Options granted to other eligible persons: BREXTEEBAL
—on 21 June 2005 — 720056 521H 770,000 8 years®F
—on 30 June 2008 — 720086 A30H 6,095,000 10 years®
- on 6 October 2009 — H2009F10A6H 4,400,000 10 years®
—on 20 July 2012 — B2012%F7A20H 4,050,000 10 years®
Total share options 1A AR pE 139,153,976
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(LB REN)

20 HERENURGCAEBRRIS @

(b) The number and weighted average (b) BREZHERMEFGTEEDT :
exercise prices of share options are as
follows:
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
InfEEH iR i B A
TEE ZHE TE(E ZEE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
B TR ot F iz
Outstanding at FHRITHE
the beginning
of the year 0.783 76,523 0.885 38,465
Granted during the year ARNFEXRT 0.860 300 0.690 42,280
Exercised during the year AN E1T{E 0.722 (33,805) 0.683 (767)
Expired during the year A4 & 5|3 2.425 (960) N/A -
Forfeited during the year N4 JE k30 N/A - 0.813 (3,455)
Outstanding at NEE IERITHE
the end of the year 0.794 42,058 0.783 76,523
Exercisable at REZIERAIITE
the end of the year 0.794 42,058 0.783 76,523

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$1.01
(2012: HK$0.78).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an
exercise price of HK$0.860, HK$0.690, HK$0.630 and
HK$0.910 (2012: HK$0.690, HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and
HK$2.425) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 6.3 years (2012: 7.7 years).

AEZTERBBRERITER Z NEFHRREAEE1.017T
(20124 : H¥0.787L) °

MR2013F 12 A31H R1TEIEIRE 2 1T#(E £ E#0.860
TT B H0.6907T © 1 0.6307T KB #0.9107T (20124
FE#0.6907T * B#0.6307T © E#0.9107T M B #E2.4257T)
NN F G 64 T R FH26.34F (20124 : 7.74F)
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 HEBZECSURDEHEERRS @)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and () BREZAFERREBR

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share  FRIR LB ME S 2 RG22 AT ETISZ R L ERE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value ~ RAFEMEIE - IR LEREZ BT QA FENIZREEHER
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value & & c AFENUADFEHE - BRECSOFHATIERILIE
of the share options granted is measured based ona X 7@ AR - BERETENTEAREHELN -
Black Scholes model. The fair value measurement is

categorised within level 2. The contractual life of the share

option is used as an input into this model. Expectations

of early exercise are incorporated into the Black Scholes

model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions: fE e v N ERERE
Date of grant
BFEH
21 June 2005 30 June 2008 6 October 2009 20 July 2012 18 January 2013
20055 20085 2009 2012% 20135
6A21A 6A30A 10A6H 7R208 1R18H
Fair value at measurement date  1\:tERHz AT E HK$0.3884/5 70  HK$0.1368578 7L  HK$0.11295/% 7T HK$0.09298 7 HK$0.1025% T
Share price RE HK$2.4000%7  HK$0.90000/87C HKS$0.61000 7T  HK$0.6900% 7T  HK$0.8600/% 7T
Exercise price 1R E HK$2.4250 70 HK$0.910007 7L  HK$0.63000% 7T  HK$0.690057C  HK$0.86007 T
Expected volatility (expressed ~ FHIK I (U E&ER
as weighted average volatility ~ BT REMBAMETIRELT)
used in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model) 8.46% 36.94% 44.579% 33.073% 30.372%
Option life (expressed as BRETH O\ EHER
weighted average life BENREMAMETSRERT)
used in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model) 2 years 3 years 3 years 3 yearsF 3 years
Expected dividends LN 6.80% 6.67% 8.20% 6.687% 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate (based ~ EER AFIE (IESERLER)
on 3-year Hong Kong
Fund Exchange Notes) 3.28% 2.87% 0.931% 0.182% 0.182%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility EHH& ﬂ]aa TR B K I8 (R B IRE 2 INAEF A FIBRF HA Gt
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining &):t& - Wit B AR A3 éﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁé&ﬂlm K E ] Z 8
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected {’Etﬁ uﬂ;ﬁk o TR B VIRBACIREETHE - TWAMRKIR
changes to future volatility based on publicly available B Z#Z 8 A A FEZ At EKREAFE -

information. Expected dividends are based on historical

dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the B&RAE 2 5% H B 35 A 00 I S B 22 o
share option grants.

q
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BXR - #HERKRE
() Movements in components of equity (2 FEFAEMIDNEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing A& B4 A& # 55 195 @ 48 5% 30 (0 &9 B 40 70 Hﬂfmﬁ‘?—ﬂ’]%ﬁ
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated 8§ * SR G A RS EBEK - FREHIARQ AERIEEE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes AKX 4B 1) GF ¥ EL R 4R M B BY 15
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AN
Share Share Capital Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings eqmg
KA BRARE BEEF -¥.N) BitER
Note HS HKS HS HKS HKS
MizE B B L B B
Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012E181A 216,103,630 190,579,386 4,201,918 15,094,291 425,979,225
Changes in equity for 2012: 20125 B&#%H
Profit and total RERHR
comprehensive income LEYREE
for the year - - - 19,706,215 19,706,215
Dividends approved in HAERS
respect of the
- current year - K% 21(b)(i) - - - (8,648,845) (8,648,845)
- previous year - fF 21(b)(ii) - - - (17,288,690) (17,288,690
Equity-settled share-based ERERIN
payment transactions* R AEARR 5" - 1,123,279 4,677,114 208,053 6,008,446
Shares issued under share BRECET2BN
option scheme y
- gross proceeds - Eliz 21(c)(ii) 383,500 140,330 - - 523,830
- transfer from capital reserve  — HAXEEEY - 73,058 (73,058) - -
Cancellation of share options ~ BUA R - - (431577) 431,577 -
Balance at 31 December #2012%12A31A
2012 and 1 January 2013 &2013F141A 216,487,130 191,916,053 8,374,397 9,502,601 426,280,181
Changes in equity for 2013: ~ 2013EHE%H
Profit and total RERHR
comprehensive income PENEEE
for the year ) - - - 44,828,915 44,828,915
Dividends approved in HAERS
respect of the
— current year - 21(b)(i) - - - (9,228,585) (9,228,585)
- previous year —EF 21(b)(it) - - - (23,048,713) (23,048,713)
Equity-settled share-based BB
payment transactions B AERR S - - 30,750 - 30,750
Shares issued under share BRED BT 2R
option scheme
- gross proceeds Eham 21(c)(ii) 16,902,500 7,511,410 - - 24,413,910
- transfer from capital reserve  — HAXEEEY - 3,480,152 (3,480,152) - -
Cancellation of share options ~ HUBEE IR 18 - - (37,271) 37,271 -
Balance at 31 December 2013 420135128318 233,389,630 202,907,615 4.887,724 22,091,489 463,276,458

*

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions of the
Company comprise the grant of 42,280,000 share
options to the Group’s employees and other eligible
persons on 20 July 2012 and the financial impact of the
share options grant to the employees of a subsidiary in
previous years that was previously accounted for by the
Group but not by the Company.

*

S ENURG AERRHBIEE2012F7 208K F A
£ EEE MEMAE AT42,280,0000% 5 I K LAE R
FFAREBMAARRERE 2B TFHBARIEE ZBK
TSR -
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21  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BEX - FERRE (E)
(Continued)

(b) Dividends by KE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) rFEERNREEAATRREMN
the Company attributable to the year

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
bt s
Interim dividend declared and B E i MR#%E 2
paid of 2 HK cents per ‘:F‘ HR S gRER
ordinary share (2012: 2 HK & A& & 24l (20124 -
cents per ordinary share) SlEmRABE2M) 9,228,585 8,648,845
Final dividend proposed after REEBEBEXRFLEEH%
the balance sheet date of BERAKRES
4 HK cents per ordinary share I @A% A 1 410
(2012: 5 HK cents per (20124 : R L@
ordinary share) & A ' 51L) 18,671,170 21,648,713
27,899,755 30,297,558
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date REEABXRAZAZEZRSHRERERENEEAR
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet R&EZHAERABEE ©

date.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) REFEESREEAQATRRECRELREE

the Company attributable to the previous eitERZM
financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
il B
Final dividend in respect of &Er;‘*ak,ﬁﬁ,%ﬁﬁirﬁa
the previous financial year, o RS BRI @R EE 5L
approved and paid during (2012%F : FRE %Hx/%MMIJJ)
the year, of 5 HK cents per
ordinary share (2012: 4 HK
cents per ordinary share) 23,048,713 17,288,690

q

| 106 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2013



-

Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(LB REN)
21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BEXR- #ERRE ®
(Continued)
(c) Share capital () K=E
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) EERBBITRA
2013 2012
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
BEHE i ferEs 2 ke
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREERAE
HK$0.50 each il 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued TER » B 1T
and fully paid: R#R
At 1 January ®1A1H 432,974,260 216,487,130 432,207,260 216,103,630
Shares issued under EREEIT
share option scheme % 15 33,805,000 16,902,500 767,000 383,500
At 31 December R12831H 466,779,260 233,389,630 432,974,260 216,487,130

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2013, options were
exercised to subscribe for 33,805,000 (2012: 767,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash
consideration of HK$24,413,910 (2012: HK$523,830).

BARBAEAREIRKWERAEROBE - XERNAS
Eem L RER-—FERERR - MBS BREARKEFER
BEHEARFMA

(i) BREXTzZRG
HZ2013F12A31HFE I - UBRBEE24,413,9107T

(20124 : #&¥523,8307T) 1715 i % # 1% 5 33,805,000%
DA (20124 ¢ 767,000/ @A%) -
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)  Share capital (Continued)

| A |
21 BXR - #FEERE @

() KA

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) NEEEERFEHZARIBRARTENBRE
options at balance sheet date

Exercise 2013 2012
Exercise period price Number Number
TR TEE HaE HE

21 June 2005 to 5 June 2013 2005F6HA21B=E
201346 A5H HK$2.4257% 7T - 960,000

30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 20086 A30H =
201856 H29H HK$0.910/% 7T 20,637,600 26,625,600

6 October 2009 to 2009F10A6H =
5 October 2019 2019F10A5H HK$0.630/% 7T 3,520,000 7,335,000

20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 2012F7R20B =&
202257 H19H HK$0.690/% 7T 17,601,000 41,603,000

18 January 2013 to 2013 1A 18 &
17 January 2023 2023F1H17H HK$0.8607% 7T 300,000 -
42,058,600 76,523,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 20.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

q
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group and other eligible
persons recognised in the accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(m).

(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
which are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to general reserve until the reserve
has reached 50% of their registered capital. The general
reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
Appropriation to general reserve during the year
amounted to approximately HK$4,402,211 (2012:
HKS$NIl).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$22,091,489 (2012: HK$9,502,601).
After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a
final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (2012: 5
HK cents per ordinary share) amounting to
HK$18,671,170 (2012: HK$21,648,713). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

(LB REN)

21 BEXR - BERBRE &

d RBEZIMHEERENE

(i) BEAXREE

AR B RRE G R M E2(m) R A AR A B E R
TRAEEREMEEBRAL ZEERMEF RITERBRE
HENRNFEESR -

(iv) HEEERE

TRRPEARKNMBEZRREHEE 2B  AEE
ZHEMBARBIEEERE  BIEKD10%D 2R

R DR
1E o EimfEES
ME$0$¢E

ﬁ@mzi:%wgﬁ)o

ﬁﬁ% BHEZHEBETMERNS50%5
%ﬁ@%%m&%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
B R 2 SR BB 4,402,211

(e) HoEREE

MR2013F12A31B R A DR T AR RARE 2 HEESEA
7102 091,489t (20124F : B #9,502,6017T) - REER
BEXRGEERE  ESEZERAPEER L BRBEHL
(2012%F : REAB R LB/ BESI) - AFHEE
186ﬁ17@i@m2¢'ﬂaﬁEE%MQ1ms7wﬁﬂo%
CEABREEHELERERERAEE
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(f)  Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio of no more than 37% (2012: 42%). In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

q
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BR B MY @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21

(Continued)
(f)  Capital management (Continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December

()

BEXREE (&)

BX - - RERRE ®

(LB REN)

2013 M2012F12 A31H 2 F B E RS AR A

2013 and 2012 was as follows: [N

The Group The Company

AEHE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

et ikt it T
Current liabilities: mEEE
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b & (- BR 18 195,697,660 205,674,956 111,089,012 129,102,551
Add: Proposed dividends il @ &% KRS 18,671,170 21,648,713 18,671,170 21,648,713
Net debt E&EFE 214,368,830 227,323,669 129,760,182 150,751,264
Total equity RS 595,525,128 558,772,415 463,276,458 426,280,181

Less: Proposed dividends J& @ 2R EKE

(18,671,170)

(21,648,713)

(18,671,170)

(21,648,713)

Adjusted capital BABER 576,853,958 537,123,702 444,605,288 404,631,468
Net debt-to-adjusted FAEHAERAK
capital ratio By £t 451 37% 42% 29% 37%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

22 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2013 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

ARBREMBARMIEZINRBRERZRNEE

22 EIE
(a) F2013F 12 A1 B A S mMERBIREBHM AN E
AGEREMT

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
il ke
Contracted for: BEL
— Purchase of equipment —BERBREA
and moulds 7,665,819 1,664,067
7,665,819 1,664,067

T =FFH MNREXERAQA 11
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(2)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheets.

Credit risk and concentration risk

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk is limited as the majority of
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies
or stated-controlled financial institutions with good
reputations.

in respect of trade debtors, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group and the
Company does not obtain collateral from customers.
Management considers the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit losses are limited and to be
acceptable.

—
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk
(Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risks of the industry and
country in which customers operate also have an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the
balance sheet date, the Group and the Company have a
certain concentration of credit risk as 27% (2012: 22%)
and 30% (2012: 24%); and 73% (2012: 76%) and 78%
(2012: 80%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are set
out in note 15.

b)  Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities which are based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

(LB REN)

23 BXEREERAFE®

(@ FERBREFRREE

REBRARGBFMAKRCEERR  FTEXSEF Z@ER
BEMTe BPEEME TERBARZBERBR I
ZBEEERR  EFERERD  cREER AEBERAEAR
AMAAREFMESEEARIE27% (20124F : 22%) &
30% (20124F : 24%) i }73% (20124 : 76%) & 78%
(2012%F : 80%) @ MAX —ERENEEETRAR -

EBEESEBAGERRCDEME 15 KE -

(b) ELRBMURRR

AEEBRT2ENEBERASESEREEERE &
EEHReBRRERENESRUNENREFR - AEE
ZBRABEHEEREG RBHMBIERK - AERELE
FRARSHBRATNKHESR 2 ES  WESHEH
EREBRBERK

TRIBAEBRARRZTENEEREBENEERZ
B INEHWHIRFE - ERENGHLNRBMEAZERENR
(BERBOEZMNE B FBMEEENEER - 5
B2MB) MAEERARAREFTEZER ZAHEE -
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AR B A EE
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23 BIREREERATE®)
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) ETRBMEEEE)
(i) The Group (i) REE
2013 2012
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying #REH demand Carying @&t RAH demand
amount MRERE 6EAAR amount  FDEBER  6EAAK
RHE ZEEH EXEFRK FaA ZEER  EXENE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BETRE Bfr BT
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMNRE 195,698 195,698 195,698 205,675 205,675 205,675
(ii) The Company (i) A&27
2013 2012
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying #:HRA% demand Carying @A demand
amount MREER 6EARY amount FRAEEE  6EARR
EHE ZEER EXEFRK FHE ZEER  BERERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETT  BETIA Bfr BT
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNEE 111,089 111,089 111,089 129,103 129,103 129,103
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBLIER 24,10 24,410 24,410 28,378 28,378 28,378

135,499 135,499 135,499 157,481 157,481 157,481

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31  BHKFERE FMESRBIF K - K2013F12H31H * &
December 2013, HK$223,736,803 (2012: EARADABFETERSIHER 2R ABE
HK$149,241,346) and HK$140,587,079 (2012: 223,736,8037C (20124 : & #149,241,3467T) KB H
HK$102,379,103) of the Group’s and the Company’s 140,587,079z (20124 : &% 102,379,1037T) °

assets, respectively, were held as cash that is considered

readily realisable.

q
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from cash and cash equivalents which were
contracted at short-term variable rates and expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(LB REN)

23 BXEREERAFE®
() F=ZE

AEEBRARARIZNERRBRFEZReRREFEIER 24
EREHAERSIBAERRARRERERAFER
R o NEBRARE 2N EENAERREEE LG
T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) F =R & b
The Group The Company
by | b O
2013 2012 2013 2012
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
ERA=E ERF% BRAI= ERF%
% HK$’000 % HK$'000 % HK$’000 % HK$'000
BRI BB BRI BB
Variable rate RITEH
bank deposits FHEE 0.35 181,814 0.77 147,438 0.34 98,726 0.41 100,636
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BWRBREDW

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax
and retained earnings by approximately HK$1,324,000
(2012: HK$1,357,000) and HK$701,000 (2012:
HK$1,006,000) respectively. Other components of equity
would not be affected (2012: HK$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

R2013F12A31AEMAB EMmEB (L EEHHIEMNER
T fEET— AR R R, A 10025 T - o RGN
SR AEBRARRE ZBRRERERADSEFBELH DR
75 #1,324,0007T (20124 : & ¥1,357,0007T) KB
701,0007T (20124 : ##1,006,0007T) ° HEfEzs T~ F
REBEPEFE (2012F : BEZIT) o

NWERBRESMEBEMNEEYERNEEBEEME
o WEERARERZABFMEEREITERETETHT
B2 FEE - 1002 TGN PIEEBEEBHEE T —
BFELEE B AR BEE 27 - 2T
2012F #H IR o EHAEHTT ©
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar and
British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying
or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(iii) The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure at the balance sheet
date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

A
23 BHHXEREERAFE®

(d) IR
(i) HER S

AEBTIZHNUAZFREEBNEEBUIN 2 EEIIE
ZWAFZ HmZAAEINERKR - BRERARZERE

(i) CHALEREE

ERUBBZ N EE N BB c EME FHREINKL
ENHRIR  ARESELZRNEHNTFEE - URE
%IEJ%EU\EJZE&@ME CERFRESHBT —ETEXD
/8 ©

(i) TRITAEEMRAQXARGEHEBEB ZBAH
BRAUNEER U -BEERIIENEERE
EMARHNEEER -

The Group The Company
3] £27
2013 2012 2013 2012
United United United United
States British States British States British States British
Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds
En %3 e i3 En %3 e i3
’000 000 '000 '000 000 000 '000 '000
Tr T# Tr T8 Tr T# Tr T8
Trade and other 2ok
receivables Hib U BRIE 22,616 190 24,362 4,216 22,616 190 24,362 4,216
Cash and cash ek
equivalents Re%EER 17,287 387 13,000 6 17,287 387 13,000 6
Trade and other 25k
payables HiEHEEE (6,781) - (5,898) (11) (6,781) - (5,898) (11)
Amounts due from  [EULHB
subsidiaries INGILEE - - - - 4,156 - - -
Amounts due EfTHB
to subsidiaries NG - - - - (129) - (3,126) -
Net exposure arising  HHEAZ
from recognised BER
assets and liabiliies B EHMBFE 33,122 577 31,464 4,211 37,149 577 28,338 4,211

—
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(d)
(iv)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax and
retained earnings in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
and the Company have significant exposure at the
balance sheet date.

(LB REN)

23 BXEREERAFE®

(d) ShEmEE (&)

(iv) SREDHF

TREEBEARERARRNGE QA ERRER 2 EX
ZEEAREIHRREABELRERNER ZBOE
) o

The Group The Company
528 523
2013 2012 2013 2012

Effect Effect Effect Effect

Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit

(decrease) in after tax and ~ (decrease) in  after taxand (decrease)in aftertax and (decrease)in  after tax and

foreign retained foreign retained foreign retained foreign retained

exchange earnings exchange eamings exchange earnings exchange eamings

rate k% rate HhH% rate HiH% rate BB

Exign/ BARRE Exgh/ HEARRE  EXEM/  BARRE  Exgn/ BARRE

(W) BRz%E (fd)  BHzPE (W) BRz%E (BY)  BHzFE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

ARTR BRI ARTR BT

British Pounds S 5% 308 5% 2,128 5% 308 5% 2,128
(5%) (308) (5%) (2,128) (5%) (308) (5%) (2,128)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong Dollar at the exchange rate
ruling as at the balance sheet date for presentation
purposes.

ERAIIRZOMERESAEER AR ER Z BRI T
MEEBEEBIREEAZER (RE2®RMNS) LRRE
TURT B 2 R Z 85T -
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at
the balance sheet date and applied to the Company and
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong Dollar and the
United States Dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United States
Dollar against other currencies. The percentage of
increase and decrease in foreign exchange rate
represents the management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

(e)  Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
2013 and 2012.

24  CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group and the
Company had no significant contingent assets or
liabilities.

q
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Notées to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group represents amounts paid to the Company’s
executive directors as disclosed in note 7.

(LB REN)

25 BEBRACEARZRESHS

@ TEEHEEAEMS

AEEEEEREARMDBEL AR DRTEERK
HTRE -

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

it ok

Short-term employee benefits 52 HiE B 27 10,582,851 11,367,263
Post-employment benefits % B & A 573,750 540,000
Share-based payments AR 10 73 BT I8 B - 1,114,800
11,156,601 13,022,063

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(a)).

(b) Other related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
no other material related party transactions were entered
into by the Group.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
company balance sheet and in note 12.

26 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 21(b).

B3N B IR TE (R B RS KT FE5(a) °

(b)y HiREBSIER

HR2013F12A31HFE IF - AEBEER 5L F#ITHEM
BERRSH °

HEAM T cEHREEEERBRZME 12 HE -

26 #H£EBAREE
RERK BEERBREYRME - SHBERHE21(0) -

——
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(AEEREN)

27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
are described below.

(@) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis or reducing balance basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from the previous
estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases,
and investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount
of the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate
precisely the fair value price because quoted market
prices for the assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
items such as level of turnover and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and operating costs.

—
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairments (Continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of the ageing analysis and an evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in future
years.

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

(LB REN)

27 EEthETRHAE @)

(b) RE (&)

AEERBEEETHETZRIEDN LA M B HEE R
ERREBRETIN BEERTREREPZEREER
KB M AR e 1T (E — ER2 B 2 H -

bR E R R ISR AT & B R Z A A F R

() FIBH

EEMGHRBEYIAE TR REHIARE 2 5HE KR
BRAZZE AEEREHFERFH2REIHNE - L&
BIRR AR - ZFERXHZHARE T E MW - A&t
KRRBEEGIZFAEEE -

EIER IR E BT s R B B bR 5 FOR Z 88 2 T IR RS 1R T
R HRZFRLERIBEEENARIOEN KA AIEEHEM
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 27 i hERAE @)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(d) Inventory provision (d FERE

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying $‘§I$¥L TR IR EREDNT - TAERRREE -
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories 245 R HE 2 7T EREE - ER R - ERGFE ﬁ%ﬁ
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of E NHKERE(GHEANREEBEFEMEFTERE ARFEX
goods and management experience and judgement. IREEE) BEREEBHEMGHEEE R A e E
Based on these reviews, write-down of inventories will & F sk &5 18 -

be made when the carrying amounts of inventories fall

below their estimated net realisable value. Due to

changes in customers’ performance, actual saleability

of goods may be different from estimates and profit or

loss could be affected by differences from estimates.

(e) Share-based payments (e) HURGHBEWIER

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted B FEERMEMAERA L ZEREZ A FEGBTTIAE
to employees and other eligible persons measured by G EMIZEHERTE - If’lfﬁf FIAR M B (A
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model ¥ 8B EBERITEEN 2 2Z - FlAFHEEBIETFZEL
with modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods D AEREBEE X FEBFRER S -

and exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy

of the above estimates could affect the amount of share-

based payments transactions recognised in profit or loss.
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Notés to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S

Bk B B &E (3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, a new standard and an interpretation which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2013 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. Of these
developments, the following relate to matters that may
be relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

(LB REN)

28 EZE2013F12A3IBLFECEMGER
EM2EE] > HEARREBZBESE

HERSRAVBHRRTIEZH  ESMASEEG
ZIEEE] - TERNRE - BREZE2013F12A31HIEF
BNARER  BNARLELEE MIERERIRMA - FEELlE
XH AT AEEBARBZEERREVBRE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
AU BB
FUEZETFHBER

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
BB ERI2EE] — 2RI A: 2% - eREEHEsRAE IR

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

EAGIEACOE] — DK RE - FeMAE

HK(IFRIC) —Interpretation 21, Levies
&8 (BARVBREREEZEY) — 2BFE215 - #E

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle
TEARBMBRE LR 2010220125 B H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle
TERBMBREERN2011E2013F B H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BEAUEHRELER — €HT A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

1 January 2014
20141 H18

1 January 2014
20141 H18

1 January 2014
20141 H18

1 July 2014
20145 7H1H

1 July 2014
20145 7H1H

1 January 2015
2015F1H1H

SESCHERAKE L ATRRUL ST RN ERIEYAE

AR E 25 2 Em AR FIER] - BRI K
BRESTEHAKEZGAMBRRENEATE -
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Five Years Financial Summary
IEHBRE

"1
T
| L
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEeEBEER
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$E000  HK$’000
AETIT ARt AT ARTr BAETR

Turnover BERE 817,000 966,564 1,175,520 1,278,079 1,182,806
Profit before taxation Fx BB 7,983 37,104 24,256 59,989 44,723
Income tax Frig®t (23) (7,312) (6,096) (12,988) (11,718)

Profit for the year and A BB R FEAR

attributable to equity NG il
shareholders of
the Company 7,960 29,792 18,160 47,001 33,005
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS mEEEAER
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BRI BT BT BT T
Property, plant and W - BB R
equipment 177,426 200,107 222,924 210,526 196,864
Interests in leasehold BELEHE
land held for own BIEEBRZ
use under operating + bR RS
leases 10,112 10,000 10,077 9,658 9,538
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 6,672 8,378 9,224 8,996 7,987
Net current assets MEVEERE 291,759 293,231 291,487 329,785 381,318
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBERE (165) (161) (207) (193) (182)
Net assets BESE 485,804 511,555 533,505 558,772 595,525
Share capital fi% 7R 197,092 205,873 216,104 216,487 233,390
Reserves E 288,712 305,682 317,401 342,285 362,135

Total equity attributable to Z~2 &) f% &
equity shareholders of FE(L =
the Company 485,804 511,555 533,505 558,772 595,525

q
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